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Financial Highlights
NBERE

2017 2016
—E-tF ZT-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TRT

Revenue B 264,215 264,229
Cost of sales 85 & B (136,902) (137,699)
Gross profit E 127,313 126,530
Selling & distribution costs HE DA X (93,726) (80,080)
Administrative expenses TKRER (27,866) (30,458)
Profit from operations | 19,726 42,567
Taxation HIa (4) 2,610
Profit for the year attributable to owners KAREBEARBGEZEA
of the Company /D 19,227 43,704
Gross margin E F = 48.2% 47.9%
Net profit ratio A =R 7.3% 16.5%
Earnings per share (RMB cents) SERERN(ARYAL)
Basic EHIK 0.6081 1.4292
Diluted e 0.6080 1.4289
Revenue by Product Category
WARERER D
87.2% 81.6%

2.0%
9.8%
1.0%
2H2017 1H2017 2H2016 1H2016
(RMB’000) —E—+F Bt ZB-RE ZEB-—XRE
(AEMF 1) TyE ke FxE bk
4 . )
h hair-
. e g s aireare products 139,105 91,390 106,179 107,837
L jaone products 2,620 2,577 3,523 9,753
Other household & personal care products
ERAR A EEED 14,474 11,477 17,509 17,806
° %aég}ggll%care products 890 1,682 1,622 0
Tﬁj' 157,089 107,126 128,833 135,396
\ e J




Financial Highlights (Continued)
BREE (&)

Revenue by Brand Category
WA 2 B B 2 AT

86.8%

78.5%

2H2017  1H2017  2H2016  1H2016
(RMB’000) —2—tHF ZB—+tF —B-AF ZB—KF
(ARH#F ) THE  L¥E  F¥E  L¥F
O 141,816 87,548 101,796 105,731
g 6,698 8,050 13,211 8,692
Herborn
KE® 2,615 2,577 3,479 9,753
Litao
s 5,065 7,269 8,682 11,220
Smerry
g 5 0 43 0
Little Ki
o mE 890 1,682 1622 0
o 157,089 107,126 128,833 135,396
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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information (Continued)
NEIER ()

Authorised representatives
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Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEREE

Dear shareholders of the Company,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors of BaWang
International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”), | present the
audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Board is pleased to report that the total revenue of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately RMB264.2
million, which remained relatively stable as compared with 2016. The
operating profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
was approximately RMB19.7 million as compared with an operating
profit of approximately RMB42.6 million in 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the net profit of the Group
was approximately RMB19.2 million, as compared with a net profit of
approximately RMB43.7 million in 2016.

For further information on the operating performance of the Group,
please refer to the “Financial Review” section of this annual report.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
IFEHREE (B)

During the year under review, the Group continued to operate under
the value-chain-oriented business model, which enabled the Group
to reduce the cost of sales and administration expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Looking forward, we plan to focus on two areas to drive the strategic
directions to sustain and develop our business in the midst of a
volatile business environment. In the short run, the Group intends to
continue building up a management team with strong experience in
both domestic and global HPC sectors, to regain the sales growth
momentum and profitability, and to improve investors’ confidence on
the Group. In the long run, the Group will continue to focus on
strengthening the business model and positioning to acquire market
shares from domestic and international competitors, maintaining a
multi-brand and multi-product strategy in HPC sectors, and
becoming a leader in the branded Chinese herbal HPC products.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our gratitude to all shareholders, customers, suppliers,
banks, professional parties, and employees of the Group for their
continuous patronage and support.

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEBNWE TN

Business Review

To kick-start the corporate operational theme of the year “To quantify
with performance following the precise execution of plans”, a national
distributors’ meeting was held in January 2017 in Guangzhou to
introduce the new Bawang haircare products, to explain the Group’s
investments in brand building and expansion of channels, and to
demonstrate the upcoming marketing campaigns and publicity
programs for the year. The incentive leisure travel scheme for
participating distributors and internal staff members has been
implemented since 2015. The Directors believe that the scheme has
motivated the distributors and sales teams to accomplish the sales
targets. The Group will therefore continue to offer free travels awards
to those who complete the predetermined sales target for a specified
period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE W& (&)

In May 2017, the Group participated in the China Beauty Expo in
Shanghai, which is one of the key cosmetic industry events in China.
The expo provided a platform for the Group to promote its various
branded products in an international arena, to get hold of the latest
developments and trends in the cosmetic industry in China and to
explore business opportunities with potential partners and
distributors. Additionally, the Group participated in the cosmetic
industry trade fairs in Xian and Lanzhou, which were held in July and
October 2017 respectively. These two trade fairs provided an
opportunity for the sales teams to expand the distribution channels in
the Group’s newly-developed markets of north-western region of
China. To optimise the resources to enhance the brand image, the
sales teams of the Group’s other branded products also tagged
along to join the beauty expo and trade fairs for recruiting distributors
for their brands.

To enhance the sales of Bawang branded products, extensive in-
store promotional campaigns, which included Chinese herbal hair-
care coaching sessions, were carried out on various festive days
throughout the year.

On the International Children’s Day on 1 June 2017, a joint
promotional program jointly held by the Group and a popular
animated character “Superwing” was carried out at the stores to
enhance the brand image of “Little King”, which is our branded
personal and skin care product series for children. To enhance sales
revenue, childcare tutorials were held for the young mothers to
promote the concepts of Chinese herbal childcare products. To make
good use of the sales opportunities, haircare assessments and
treatments were conducted for the mothers at the same time. A
WeChat network for subsequent discussions on the questions about
childcare and haircare between the sales teams and the customers
has been established to promote the brand awareness and
functionality of our branded products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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As at 31 December 2017, the Bawang brand distribution network
comprised approximately 674 distributors and 21 KA retailers,
covering 27 provinces and four municipalities in China. Furthermore,
the Bawang branded products were also sold in Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia and Venezuela.

During the year under review, the Group rolled out new Royal Wind
branded shampoo products with the marketing theme “Let’s chase
for the wind rather than wait for the wind” primarily for the online sales
channel. As at 31 December 2017, the Royal Wind brand distribution
network comprised approximately 674 distributors and 20 KA
retailers, covering 27 provinces and four municipalities in China.

The Litao products mainly comprise shower gels and laundry
detergents, which target consumers living in the second-tier or third-
tier cities in China. The Group’s goal is to widen the market coverage
in China. A natural fruit shower gel series was rolled out during the
year under review. As at 31 December 2017, the Litao products
distribution network comprised approximately 674 distributors and
two KA retailers, covering 27 provinces and four municipalities in
China.

The Herborn Chinese herbal skincare product series targets white-
collar ladies in the age range from 25 to 45 who have relatively high
net incomes and who are dedicated to pursue a healthy and natural
lifestyle. As at 31 December 2017, the sales and distribution network
for the Herborn Chinese herbal skincare products comprised
approximately 93 distributors and one KA retailer covering 27
provinces and four municipalities in China. Apart from these traditional
sales channels, the Group had about 960 counters in cosmetics
specialty shops as at 31 December 2017.
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During the year under review, the Group has established online
flagship stores for our Bawang, Royal Wind and Herborn branded
products on 12 online retailing platforms in China.

For the year under review, we obtained and/or renewed and/or
possessed the certificates and/or recognitions as follows:

we were listed among the “Leading Brands of China” (47 Bl 7 &4 )
of the 22nd China Beauty Expo, which was granted by the
China Beauty Expo;

our Chinese herbal skincare series shampoo and hair care
products and shower gel products were both recognised as
“Innovative Products of Guangdong” (BB & = EIE ) by
the Guangdong New Hi-tech Enterprise Association in
December 2017 for a period of three years until the end of
2020;

the Group was awarded the “2017 Innovative Marketing
Enterprise of China’s Fashion Industry Award” and the “2017
Consumer’s Most Trusted Brand of China’s Trendy Industry
Award” by Xinxi News* ({Z 2.k #R);

we were awarded as one of the “2017 Top Ten Weibo
Enterprises (Guangdong)” at the 2018 “Beyond Influential”
Guangdong Sina Weibo Festival (2018}8 & &£ 1 ¥R & H k1§

faniig \),

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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— we were awarded the “7th Entertainment Marketing 5S Gold
Award — Sales Performance Award” by The Advertiser (&8 F);

— Bawang’s brand was also listed among “China’s Classic Brand
Stories” by the China Publication Group Company* (T8 H kix &
EAF);

— we have renewed the permit for production of cosmetic
products, which was issued by the Guangdong Provincial Food
& Drug Administration and is valid until May 2021; and

— three Bawang branded series shampoos have been recognised
as “The 2015 New High-Tech Products in Guangdong” by the
Guangdong Provincial Bureau of Science & Technology for a
period of three years until the end of 2018.

Key Risks and Uncertainties

Apart from those stated in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis sections, the Company is
exposed to the following key risks and uncertainties which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

1. Risks Relating to Our Industry

In recent years, it is common for the Mainland manufacturing
enterprises to face continuous rising labour costs and difficulties
in employing skilled labour. Our Group’s responding strategy is
to reduce the production costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEFNRE DM (E)

Credit Risks Relating to Customers

Exposure to bad debts attributable to customers usually
intensifies following a weak economic performance. To minimize
credit risks, the management of the Group has appointed
dedicated staff members to handle procedures for determining
credit limits, credit approval and other monitoring procedures,
to ensure that follow-up actions with all receivables are taken in
a timely manner. In addition, the Group reviews the collectibility
of receivables at the end of a reporting period, to ensure that
sufficient impairment losses are provided for in respect of
uncollectible monies. For the year ended 31 December 2017,
no bad debts were recorded by the Group.

Liquidity Risks

In managing liquidity risks, the Group monitors and maintains
cash and cash equivalents at a level which is considered by the
management as sufficient, to satisfy the needs arising from the
Group’s operations and to mitigate the effect of fluctuations of
cash flow. The Group’s management will continue to closely
monitor the use of cash.

Currency Risks

Sales to overseas countries denominated in foreign currencies
expose the Group to foreign exchange risks. The Group closely
manages and monitors foreign exchange risks to ensure that
appropriate measures are taken in a timely manner. The Group
will consider using hedging in respect of foreign currencies to
mitigate relevant risks as and when appropriate.

Environmental Protection

The Group is responsible for its impact to the environment arising
from its business operations. During the year under review, the Group
strictly complied with the local environmental regulations of the PRC.
The production of household and personal care products belongs to
the light industry, thus no pollutants are involved during the
manufacturing process and adverse impact to the surrounding
environment is minimal. The Group has been investing and
implementing various energy conservation projects in recent years, in
which overall power consumption has drastically reduced.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Business Compliance

During the year under review, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group.

Relationship with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group adopts an employee-oriented approach, which ensures
that all staff members are reasonably remunerated. To retain a quality
workforce, we strive to regularly improve, review and update our
human resources policy and our compensation and benefits. We also
provide training opportunities to upgrade the skills of our staff
members. We also care for the occupational health and safety of our
workers.

The Group’s major customers are categorised into four channels,
namely traditional distributors, B2B corporate clients, key account
hypermarkets and supermarkets, and online sales (including online
official flagship stores and distributors). The credit terms granted to
major customers are 30 to 90 days, which are in line with those of
the credit terms granted to other customers.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. We have
put in place procedures for handling customer complaints to receive
and analyse the customers’ complaints and make recommendations
on remedial actions with a view to improving service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a
fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.
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Financial Review

Revenue

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue from operations
amounted to approximately RMB264.2 million, which remained
relatively stable as compared with 2016. The revenue through the
online sales channel had a substantial increase of approximately
235.5% as compared to 2016, but such increase was offset by the
decrease in the aggregate revenue generated from the traditional
sales channels.

The Group’s core brand, Bawang, generated approximately
RMB229.4 million in revenue, which accounted for approximately
86.8% of the Group’s total revenue by brand category in 2017, and
represented an increase of approximately 10.6% as compared with
2016.

The branded Chinese herbal anti-dandruff hair care series, Royal
Wind, generated approximately RMB14.7 million in revenue, which
accounted for approximately 5.6% of the Group’s total revenue by
brand category in 2017, and represented a decrease of approximately
32.9% as compared with 2016.

The natural-based branded shampoo, shower gel and laundry
detergent products series, Litao, generated approximately RMB12.3
million in revenue, which accounted for approximately 4.7% of the
Group’s total revenue by brand category in 2017, and represented a
decrease of approximately 38.2% as compared with 2016.

The branded Chinese herbal skincare series, Herborn, generated
approximately RMB5.2 million in revenue, which accounted for
approximately 2.0% of the Group’s total revenue by brand category
in 2017, and represented a decrease of approximately 60.6% as
compared with 2016.

We sold our products through extensive distribution and retail
networks. During the year under review, sales to our distributors and
retailers represented approximately 80.6% and approximately 19.4%
of the Group’s total revenue from operations respectively.

In 2017, our products were also sold in Hong Kong, Singapore,
Thailand, Malaysia and Venezuela. The sales to these overseas
markets outside mainland China accounted for approximately 3.2%
of our total revenue in 2017.
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Cost of Sales

Cost of sales in 2017 amounted to approximately RMB136.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 0.6% compared with
approximately RMB137.7 million in 2016. Such decrease was mainly
due to the decrease in manufacturing expenses, which was partially
offset by the increase in the costs of raw materials and packaging
materials consumed, and direct labour expenses.

Gross Profit

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit increased to
approximately RMB127.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately 0.6% as compared with approximately RMB126.5
million for 2016. The gross profit margin increased from approximately
47.9% for 2016 to approximately 48.2% for 2017. Such increase was
mainly attributable to the decrease in cost of sales and the roll-out of
new high-margin products during the year under review.

Selling and Distribution Costs

Selling and distribution costs increased to approximately RMB93.7
million for 2017, representing an increase of approximately 17.0% as
compared to that for 2016. Such increase was mainly due to the
increase in advertising expenses for brand building in various online
sales platforms and the increase in product delivery expenses that
resulted from the substantial increase in sales volume through online
sales channel in 2017, but such increase was partially offset by the
decrease in promotion and distributors meeting expenses. As a
percentage of revenue, our selling and distribution costs increased
from approximately 30.3% in 2016 to 35.5% in 2017.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for 2017 amounted to approximately
RMB27.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately 8.5% as
compared with approximately RMB30.5 million in 2016. Such
decrease was mainly due to the decreases in provision for bad debts,
staff meeting expenses, and postal and communication expenses. As
a percentage of revenue, our administration costs were approximately
10.5% and 11.5% in 2017 and 2016 respectively.
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Profit from Operations

The Group recorded an operating profit of approximately RMB19.7
million for 2017, as compared with an operating profit of
approximately RMB42.6 million for 2016. The decrease in operating
profit was mainly because of (1) a much lower level of other income,
which during year ended 31 December 2016 included the one-off
amount that was recovered from a litigation claim, (2) the increase in
the costs of packaging materials and direct labour expenses, and (3)
the increase in the Group’s raw materials and selling and distribution
costs.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2017, interest on bank borrowings
amounted to approximately RMBO0.5 million (2016: Nil), and there was
no imputed interest on non-interest bearing loans from controlling
shareholders in 2017 (2016: approximately RMB1.5 million).

Taxation

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s income tax
expense was approximately RMB4,000 (2016: Nil). A write-back of
the excess of previous years’ provision for the Enterprise Income Tax
of China and deferred tax in an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB2.6 million was credited to the taxation account for 2016.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the combined effect of the above mentioned factors,
the Group recorded a profit of approximately RMB19.2 million for
2017, as compared with a profit of approximately RMB43.7 million for
2016.

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company

As a result of the combined effect of the above factors, the Group
recorded a profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB19.2 million for 2017, as compared with a profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately RMB43.7
million for 2016.
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Event after the Reporting Period

On 17 April 2018, the Company appointed Dr. WANG Qi as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and a member
of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. Please refer to the
relevant announcement of the Company dated 17 April 2018 for
detalils.

Outlook

The International Monetary Fund expects China’s gross domestic
product (“GDP”) growth to stand at approximately 6.6% in 2018.
Some economists have different expectations, which range from
approximately 6.4% to approximately 6.7%. According to Reuters,
China is expected to maintain a GDP growth rate of around 6.5% in
2018. The economy is expected to grow moderately in China.

China’s GDP grew by approximately 6.9% in 2017, which was 0.2
percentage point higher than its initial target. The moderate growth
target for 2018 suggests that the government is cautious about the
downside risks to the Chinese economy that are driven by external
factors that may be caused by the US interest rate hikes and tax
cuts, restrictive trade policies in developed economies, and
geographical tensions; and internally driven by factors such as the
uncertainty around housing prices.

However, some economists are of the view that China is transitioning
to a slower and more sustainable economic model, which makes
them optimistic about the Chinese economy in 2018 and even
beyond. The Directors are also optimistic about the future of the
Chinese economy.

The corporate theme for 2018 is “The King is Back; Result is King.”
The Group will strive to maintain the sales growth momentum so as
to keep the business profitable. In addition, the Group intends to
demonstrate its confidence and determination to the people in the
healthcare industry, and to cooperate with its distributors and retailers
in revitalising the Bawang brand name. The corporate goal will be
aligned in accordance with its targeted results. In this connection, the
Group will allocate sufficient resources and supporting services to the
sales teams to facilitate their accomplishment of the organisational
goal to the fullest extent.
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For Bawang branded product series, we will design specific sales
promotion programs in the supermarkets for each festival during the
year, whereby assorted branded products of the Group will be
bundled together for sale as a way of attracting customers and
increasing sales. High-end herbal essence hair care bundled products
would be rolled out in order to satisfy the needs of the affluent
consumer segment. New hair care product series with animated
characters known as “Herbal Fairies” will be launched targeting
towards young customers between 20 and 30 years old, who choose
to use products that are made domestically. The Group will continue
to expand the cooperation with those distributors who have obtained
an exclusive right to sell household and personal care (‘HPC”)
products in dedicated areas inside contracted supermarkets. The
Group may also engage young and emerging Internet celebrities in
promoting the Bawang brand to their followers on the Internet and
broadening the Group’s customer base.

As for the Little King branded children’s product series, which is still
in its developmental stage, the Group will work on the brand-building
process and develop both the traditional as well as online sales
channels. To enhance the brand recognition, Chinese herbal
childcare concept briefings will be carried out together with in-store
sales promotion campaigns.

For Royal Wind branded product series, the Group intends to re-
package this product series and to roll-out this series mainly through
the online sales channel.

For Herborn branded product series, owing to the allocation of
internal  resources, the Group intends to phase out this product
series. The Group will strive to clear the existing inventory through its
online sales channel and staff or group purchases.

For production management, in order to keep the customers satisfied
with our products, our belief is that quality of product is of paramount
importance. Our Group will concurrently set up benchmark controls
to ensure operational efficiency and to operate our production centre
in strict compliance with various guidelines and regulations such as
industrial safety, environmental protection, and staff welfares. Efforts
will be made to maintain the transparency of operations to enhance
the consumers’ confidence in the quality of our products.

As part of the business expansion plan, the Group will continue to
explore the possibility with potential distributors for launching our
branded products to other countries. The Group is open to explore
further business opportunities with potential overseas distributors.

As of the date of this annual report, the Group does not have any
outstanding acquisition opportunity on hand, nor is actively exploring
business opportunities that may involve potential acquisition.
However, the Group is open to potential investment opportunities.
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The Group adopts conservative financial management policies and
maintains a good and solid financial position. A summary of liquidity
and financial resources is set out below:

% BT MBERKREALRR

7R £ 1B BR A AR <7 O 3R B R WS 3 M RF R 4F
REMNMBMRR - RBES MUK ER
MEINHHT

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

RZE—+tHF RZE—RF

+t=ZA=t—-H +TZA=+—H

RMB in million RMB in million

ARBEET AREBET

Cash and cash equivalents HeREESZEEY 46.1 22.3

Total loans BERAHE — 5.6

Total assets 18R E 298.4 295.5

The gearing ratio’ BEAEFEX - 1.9%

Note: HEE

1. Calculate as total loans divided by total assets 1. EEBBXREREBRUEELRE

Material Acquisition and Disposal

The Group did not engage in any material acquisition or disposal of
any of its subsidiaries or associates during the year under review.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Hedging

The operations of the Group are mainly carried out in China, with
most transactions being settled in Renminbi. The reporting currency
of the Group is Renminbi. During the year under review, the Group
had exported its goods to Hong Kong and certain overseas countries.
The transactions were settled in either Hong Kong Dollars or United
States Dollars. The Group’s cash and bank deposits are mostly
denominated in Renminbi. The Company will pay dividends in Hong
Kong Doallars if dividends are declared. In addition, the Group paid
certain advertising fees in United States Dollars or Hong Kong Dollars.
The Directors are of the view that the Group conducts its business
transactions principally in Renminbi and thus the exchange risk at the
Group’s operational level is not significant. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group had not issued any material financial instruments or
entered into any material contracts for foreign currency hedging
purposes. However, the Directors will continue to monitor the foreign
exchange exposure and are prepared to take prudent measures such
as hedging when required.
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2017.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2017, the capital commitment of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2.7 million.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 December 2016, buildings with carrying values of
approximately RMB3,927,000 (2017: Nil) were pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to applicable statutory provisions of the Cayman Islands,
the Company had no reserves available for distribution to the
shareholders as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Inventories

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had inventories of approximately
RMB47.6 million, representing an increase of approximately 13.9%
compared with approximately RMB41.8 milion for 2016. Such
increase was primarily due to increase in the inventory of raw
materials and work in progress and a higher level of safety inventory
was maintained in order to cope with the high inventory turnover in
the online sales channel.

The Group adopts a prudent approach in valuing its inventory. The
Group continuously monitors the inventory levels of its different raw
materials, packaging materials and finished goods, and based on
feedback from the sales force on the various product lines and sales
figures, the management regularly identifies the inventory levels of
individual inventory items to determine whether there is any slow
moving or obsolete items or finished goods. On this basis, the
management will devise actions to be taken in relation to such
inventory prior to their obsolescence, and/or whether provision
should be made.
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Trade Receivables

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately RMB41.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 6.3% compared with approximately RMB44.3 million
for 2016. Such decrease was primarily due to the increase in sales
through online channel and the collection period for online channel
being shorter than those of retailer and distributor channels.

Some of the Group’s sales are made on credit, trade receivables are
resulted when the goods and titles have been delivered and passed,
respectively. The management regularly reviews the credit quality of
the Group’s customers and their partners to evaluate whether
provision should be made.

Trade and Other Payables

As at 31 December 2017, the trade and other payables of the Group
was approximately RMB117.4 million (2016: RMB127.1 million). The
decrease was primarily due to a significant decrease in promotion fee
payables. For the two years ended 31 December 2017, trade and
other payables did not include any balances due to related parties.

Human Resources

To provide incentive to the employees of the Group, the Group is
committed to staff training and development under any economic
circumstances. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees. The Group will continue to invest in our human capital so
as to retain a quality workforce to achieve our organisational goal.

In 2017, the Group organised various in-house training classes to
strengthen the soft skills of our staff members such as time
management, stress management, and leadership development.
Apart from these in-house courses, the Group also required our
department managers to attend external courses on reward and
compensation, and motivation, we required our senior sales and
marketing staff to attend brand positioning strategy course, and we
required our finance and accounting staff members to attend
seminars about the latest accounting standards, taxation practices
and budgetary control.
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed approximately 1,127
employees (31 December 2016: 1,335), consisting of full-time
employees and contract personnel in the PRC and Hong Kong. The
total personnel expenses, comprising wages, salaries and benefits,
amounted to RMB53.0 million for 2017 (31 December 2016:
RMB48.1 million).

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the total headcount of
our employees and outsourcing personnel as at 31 December 2017
and 2016:

R-ZE—+F+_A=+—"H AEH
BRAARKH112TBETI(ZE—RF+ =
A=+—H :1,335) » Eh @37 R E
EANEBEINURANEE - AE4A
AYXBREIE FeMEd Rn_ZT—+t
FRARESBBEEL(ZE—XRF+ =
A=+—8: AR®4818B&ET) -

TRV -_FT—ttF+-_A=+—H

MZE-—REF+A=+—HHMANE
BRENINBEABHRA

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

R-ZZE—+tF RZTE—RF

t=A=+t—-8 +ZA=+—H

Full-time employees 2HES 185 207
Contract personnel EHEE

— Sales persons — 1285 B 547 697

— Others —EHfb 395 431

Total employees HWES A 1,127 1,335

The employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary review are
based on individual job responsibilities, work performances,
professional experiences and the prevailing industry practices.

Our employees in the PRC and Hong Kong join social insurance
contribution plans and mandatory provident fund scheme
respectively. Other benefits include performance-based incentive
bonus scheme and share options granted or to be granted under the
share option schemes.

The Directors believe that the Group’s human resources policies play
a crucial part in the further development of the Group. Promising
career prospects, good staff remuneration and benefits as well as
pleasant working environment are essential factors for maintenance
of a stable workforce for the Group.
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The Corporate Governance Code and the
Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to enhancing the corporate governance
and internal control systems of the Group, and the Board reviews
and updates all necessary measures in order to promote good
corporate governance and effective internal control. Save as
mentioned in this annual report, the Board is of the view that the
Company has complied with the principles and applicable code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

According to code provision A.5.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Nomination Committee should comprise a majority of
independent non-executive Directors. During the period from 22
November 2017 and prior to the appointment of Mr. CHEUNG Kin
Wing to the Nomination Committee on 14 February 2018, the
Company did not comply with the said code provision. Such non-
compliance was due to the passing-away of an independent non-
executive Director, the time needed to identify suitable candidates
who have appropriate expertise and who also satisfy the Company’s
board diversity policy to serve as an independent non-executive
Director, the time needed to conduct the due diligence checks on
and interviews with the potential independent non-executive Director
candidates, and also the time needed to undertake the nomination
and appointment procedures.

Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the standards for
the directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company confirms that the
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the year under review.
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Board of Directors

As at 31 December 2017, the Board comprised five members,
including the Chairman, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. CHEN Zheng He (the “CEQ”), the Chief Financial Officer
and two independent non-executive Directors. Biographical details of
the Directors are set out in the section headed Directors and Senior
Management on pages 56 to 60 of this annual report.

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring the Group’s
strategies and policies, approving annual budgets and business
plans, evaluating the performance of the Group and supervising the
work of management. The management is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group under the leadership of the CEQ.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive Directors and senior management of the Company. These
responsibilities include implementing decisions of the Board and
directing and co-ordinating day-to-day operation and management of
the Group. The Board reviews these arrangements periodically to
ensure such arrangements remain appropriate to the Group’s needs.

On 22 November 2017, Mr. LI Bida, an independent non-executive
Director, passed away and ceased to be an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Nomination Committee and the Audit and Risk
Management Committee.

As a result, as at 31 December 2017, the Company only had two
independent non-executive Directors, and the compositions of its
Board, the Audit and Risk Management Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee fell below
the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules and/or the
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code.

On 14 February 2018, Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing, an independent non-
executive Director of the Company, was appointed as the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Notwithstanding such appointment, the
Company only had two independent non-executive Directors and the
Audit and Risk Management Committee only has two members,
which did not comply with the applicable requirements under Rules
3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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The Company had applied to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for, and the Stock Exchange had
granted to the Company, a waiver from strict compliance with Rules
3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules during the period from 22
February 2018 to 22 May 2018.

Notwithstanding the Audit and Risk Management Committee
consisting of only two independent non-executive Directors as at 31
December 2017, the Board considered that the current members of
the Audit and Risk Management Committee, who are both
professional accountants and are experienced in matters relating to
auditing and/or accounting, risk management and internal control
and also act as independent non-executive directors of other listed
companies, continue to be well supported by the senior management
of the Company to perform their duties (including in particular their
review of the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 and the financial reporting process and risk
management control systems of the Company).

On 17 April 2018, the Company appointed Dr. WANG Qi as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and a member
of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. The Company has re-
complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules on the
same date.

To satisfy the independence requirement of the independent non-
executive Directors, the Board must determine that the independent
non-executive Director does not have any direct or indirect material
relationship with the Group. The Board follows the requirements set
out in the Listing Rules to determine the independence of Directors.
Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of 3
years.

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated in order to
reinforce their independence and accountability. Except that the
CEO, Mr. CHEN Zheng He, is the son of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the
Directors are not otherwise related to each other.

The Board held 12 meetings in 2017. Each of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung and Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing attended all meetings. Mr. LI Bida attended 11
meetings during the time in which he was a Director.
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The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) as required by the Corporate Governance Code and has
taken into account the diversity of the Board when selecting the
candidates from a number of perspectives as stated in the Diversity
Policy as published on the Company’s webpage. The Nomination
Committee will monitor the implementation of the Diversity Policy and
has followed the Diversity Policy in the nomination of the new
independent non-executive director.

Remuneration of Directors and Chief Executive

Details of the remuneration of each Director and the Chief Executive
for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements. Other than the Directors and the
Chief Executive, there is no other member of senior management.

Directors’ Training

Under Code Provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Internally facilitated briefings for directors are arranged and
reading materials on relevant topics are issued to Directors where
appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, all Directors as at 31
December 2017 (being Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Mr. CHEN Zheng He, Mr.
WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr. LI Bida (up to 22
November 2017) and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing) received regular
updates on the Group’s business, operations, risk management and
corporate governance matters, and participated in the directors’
training offered by professional body or arranged by the Company.
Materials on new or changes to salient laws and regulations
applicable to the Group were provided to the Directors. Directors are
requested to provide their records of training they received to the
Company Secretary for record.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises our executive Director, Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, and our two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing (appointed on 14 February 2018) and Dr.
NGAI Wai Fung. Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing is the chairperson of the
Remuneration Committee since 14 February 2018. Mr. LI Bida was
the chairperson of the Remuneration Committee before he passed
away on 22 November 2017. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendation to the Board on the overall
remuneration policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of our Group, review performance based remuneration
and ensures that none of our Directors determine their own
remuneration. If necessary, the Remuneration Committee will have
access to independent advice.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in 2017. Each of Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, Mr. LI Bida, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung attended the said
meeting.

During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed the
remuneration structure of the Directors.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises our executive Director, Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan, and our two independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing (appointed on 14 February 2018) and Dr. NGAI
Wai Fung. Mr. LI Bida was a member of the Nomination Committee
before he passed away on 22 November 2017. Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is
the chairperson of the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of
the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and to make recommendations to the
Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and the re-
election of Directors.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting in 2017. During the
meeting, the committee members reviewed the senior management
structure of the Group and the re-election of Directors. All committee
members attended the said meeting. The members of the Nomination
Committee also discussed the potential candidates for independent
non-executive director after Mr. LI Bida had passed away.
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Audit and Risk Management Committee

As at 31 December 2017, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors,
both of whom possess the appropriate business and financial
experience and skills to understand the accounts of the Group. Mr. LI
Bida was a member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
before he passed away on 22 November 2017. The Audit and Risk
Management Committee is chaired by Dr. NGAlI Wai Fung and the
other member is Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing. Save as mentioned in this
annual report, the Audit and Risk Management Committee was
formed in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and risk management
and internal control systems of the Company.

The written terms of reference which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit and Risk Management Committee were prepared
and adopted in accordance with the Listing Rules. The Audit and
Risk Management Committee is required, amongst other things, to
oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, to review accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group, to engage independent legal or other advisers as it determines
necessary and to perform investigations.

During the year, the Audit and Risk Management Committee has
performed the following:

— met with the external auditor to discuss the general scope and
findings of their annual audit and interim review work;

— reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval of the
external auditor’s remuneration;

— made recommendations to the Board on the reappointment of
the external auditor;

— reviewed the external auditor’'s independence, objectivity and
the effectiveness of the auditing process;

— reviewed the annual and interim reports and annual and interim
results announcements of the Company;

— reviewed the effectiveness and the implementation of the
Group’s internal audit and risk management function;
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— discussed auditing, internal control, risk management and
financial reporting matters of the Company before
recommending them to the Board for approval; and

— reviewed the connected transactions entered into by the Group.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the annual
report with the management and the external auditors and
recommended its adoption by the Board.

All issues raised by the external auditor and the Audit and Risk
Management Committee have been addressed by the senior
management of the Company. The work and findings of the Audit
and Risk Management Committee have been reported to the Board.
During the year, no issues were brought to the attention of the senior
management of the Company and the Board of sufficient significance
for disclosure in this annual report.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee held three meetings in
2017. Each of Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEUNG Kin
Wing had attended all three meetings.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for
performing the functions set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code.

During the year under review, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee met once to review the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and the compliance of the Company with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.
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Directors’ responsibilities for financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company, and for ensuring that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards.

A statement from the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017, is set out on pages 61 to 67 of the annual
report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Internal control and risk management

The Board is responsible for making appropriate assertions on the
adequacy and the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems and procedures and to resolve material internal
control defects. The Board together with the senior management of
the Group are jointly responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control of the Group so as to ensure the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations of the Group in achieving
the established corporate objectives, safeguarding assets of the
Group, rendering reliable financial reporting and complying with the
applicable laws and regulations.

During the year under review, the management of the Group, through
its daily management activities, gathers information on the Group’s
business, receives reports from the internal control function of the
Group, and analyses feedback from frontline and back office staff to
identify risks in the Group’s business, operation, financial conditions
and future expansion plans. Significant risks that are identified are
presented to the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
Board on an ongoing basis.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board is
responsible for reviewing reports and proposals submitted. The Audit
and Risk Management Committee will consider such risks and
recommend to the Board measures that should to be taken to
address them. Where appropriate, management of the Group will
assist the Audit and Risk Management Committee in submitting
proposals to the Board to address risks faced by the Group.
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Based on the risks identified by the Group’s management and the
Group’s internal control function, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee will also regularly review and report to the Board as to
whether the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are effective, whether there are adequate resources (including
budgetary support for the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, staff with adequate qualification and
experience) for the implementation of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, and whether measures are in place to
ensure that the staff are suitably trained for this purpose. The
Directors will then collectively decide on what actions should be
taken.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group covering all material controls such as financial, operational
and compliance controls. The Board considers that these systems
and controls are well established to suit the Group’s needs and are
effective and adequate.

The Directors recognise that the Group’s risk management and
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Handling and disclosure of inside information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information (as defined under the Listing
Rules), the Company is fully aware of its obligations under Chapter 13
of the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
Board reviews from time to time its internal guidelines on inside
information with reference to its own and industry circumstances and
also makes reference the “Guide on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission in considering its
obligations to make a disclosure. The Company’s policy strictly
prohibits unauthorised use or dissemination of confidential or inside
information and has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, including
the provision of an email address for external enquiries. The Company
Secretary also regularly sends out reminders to the directors, senior
management and employees reminding them of their obligations with
respect to inside information under the relevant statutory provisions
and Listing Rules.
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All media communication activities are restricted to persons
appointed by the Board for the role in order to protect the interests of
the Company and keep inside information strictly confidential prior to
its disclosure.

Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors: (i) dispatching printed copies of corporate
communication documents to shareholders; (i) the annual general
meeting provides a forum for shareholders to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board; (iii) latest and key information of the
Group are available on the website of the Company; (iv) press
conferences and briefing meetings with investors, shareholders and
analysts are set up from time to time to provide updated information
about the Group, and; (v) the Company’s registrars serve the
shareholders in respect of all share registration matters. The Board
welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them to attend
general meetings to raise any concerns they might have with the
Board or the management directly. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the Chairmen and/or other members of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee and the Remuneration Committee will
normally attend the annual general meetings and other shareholders’
meetings of the Company to answer questions raised.

The Company convened one shareholders’ general meeting in 2017,
being the Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) for the year 2016. The
AGM held on 26 May 2017 reviewed and approved numerous
resolutions such as the financial statements for the year 2016, Report
of Directors and appointment and remuneration of auditors of the
Company. All the Directors, namely Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Mr. CHEN
Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAlI Wai Fung and Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing, and Mr. LI Bida, a former independent non-
executive Director have attended the AGM of the Company.

Company Secretary

The company secretary is Mr. WONG Sin Yung, an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
WONG is also our executive Director and Chief Financial Officer. He
assists the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that the policy and procedures of the Board are followed.
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In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. WONG has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”),
shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings may
request the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting
by sending a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board.

Contact details are as follows:
Address: Suite B, 16/F Ritz Plaza,

122 Austin Road,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of Mr. WONG Sin Yung,
Company Secretary)

Fax: +852 3114 8819
Email: IR@1338.hk

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles. An up-to-date Articles is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders
may refer to the Articles for further details of their rights.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The remuneration paid (payable) to the Company’s independent
external auditor, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, for the year ended
31 December 2017 in relation to audit services and non-audit
services (including the review of the Company’s interim results
announcement and interim report for the year 2017) are
approximately RMB1,025,000 and RMB216,000 respectively.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

The Directors submit this Report of Directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are the designing, manufacturing,
trading and distribution of Chinese herbal products, including
shampoo products, hair-care products, skin-care products, and
household cleaning products. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 165 to 166 of this
annual report.

Dividends

Following a review of the operating results of the Group, the Board
does not recommend the payment of any final dividends in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 68 of
this annual report.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the financial year 2017 are set out on pages 71 and
150 of this annual report respectively.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2017, sales made to the
Group’s five largest customers and the largest customer accounted
for approximately 16.2% and 5.3%, respectively of the total sales of
the Group. The Group purchased approximately 45.9% and 19.3%,
respectively of its goods and services from its five largest suppliers
and the largest supplier.
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Save for Guangzhou Chenming Paper Products Company Limited
(“Chenming Paper”), which is one of the Group’s suppliers and is
wholly owned by Mr. CHEN Qiwen, the brother of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan (a
Director of the Company), none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company, which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital had any interest in the share capital of the Group’s five largest
customers or five largest suppliers. The total purchase amount from
Chenming Paper by the Group accounted for approximately 5.0% of
the total purchase of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 167 of this annual
report.

Bank Borrowings

Please refer to note 25 of the audited consolidated financial
statements for details of bank loans and other borrowings of the
Group.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of the movements in the share capital of and the share
options granted by the Company are set forth in notes 26 to 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Changes in Equity

Please refer to the consolidated statement of changes in equity as

contained in the audited consolidated financial statements of the year
(page 71 of this annual report).
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

Principal Subsidiaries

Please refer to note 35 of the audited consolidated financial
statements for details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2017.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
under review.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float with at least 25% of the Shares held by the
public as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2017 and up to the date of this annual report.

Permitted Indemnity

For the year under review and as at the date of this report, the
Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal actions against the directors of the Company.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.
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Directors
The Directors during the year were:

Executive Directors

CHEN Qiyuan (Chairman)
CHEN Zheng He (Chief Executive Officer)
WONG Sin Yung cra

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung php, cPA, FCCA, FCIS, FCS (P.E))
LI Bida (Passed away on 22 November 2017)
CHEUNG Kin Wing rca, cra

Directors’ Biographies and re-election of Directors

Details of the Directors’ (for the year ended 31 December 2017)
biographies have been set out on pages 56 to 60 of the annual
report.

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles, Mr. CHEN Zheng He
and Dr. NGAI Wai Fung will retire and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of our executive Directors (other than Mr. CHEN Zheng He) has
entered into a director’s service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years from 4 July 2015. Mr. CHEN Zheng He has
entered into a director’s service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years from 20 October 2014, which is automatically
renewable upon expiration, unless terminated by not less than six
months’ written notice served by either party to the service
agreement on the other or in accordance with the provisions set out
in the relevant service agreement.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors (other than Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing) has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years from 4 July 2015. Mr. CHEUNG
Kin Wing has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years from 13 November 2017. For details of the
letter of appointment entered into between Dr. WANG Qi and the
Company after the year under review, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Appointment of new independent non-executive Director”
on page 41 of this annual report.
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None of the Directors of the Company has entered into any service
contract with the Company which cannot be terminated by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Emoluments

The emoluments for the Directors are determined with reference to
salaries paid by comparable companies, experience, responsibilities
and performance of the Group. In addition to the fees, salaries,
housing allowances, other allowances, benefits in kind or bonuses,
the Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme
pursuant to which the participants, including the Directors, may be
granted options to subscribe for the Shares.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors (other than LI Bida, who passed away on 22
November 2017) an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

Updates on Directors’ Information

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of China Communications Construction Company Limited
(01800), and ceased to be an independent non-executive director of
China Railway Construction Corporation Limited (00390) and China
Coal Energy Company Limited (01898).

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing, an independent non-executive Director of
the Company, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Trio Industrial Electronics Group Limited (01710) and Kin
Pang Holdings Limited (01722), the shares of which were listed on
the Stock Exchange in November 2017 and December 2017,
respectively.
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Appointment of new independent non-executive
Director

After the year under review, on 17 April 2018, Dr. WANG Qi was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director and a member
of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. Dr. WANG Qi entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years from 17 April 2018.

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles, Dr. WANG Qi will retire
and being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations

As of 31 December 2017, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
to be and were entered into the register that was required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code:

TN BELEHATES

REBEFEZ R_T-N\FOA++
B FTRELREZEA/RARABILIEHN
TEENRERZAEREEZESZ
B -ITHBLEBARBRIERIR  H
“E-\FOA+EHE RE=%F-

REARRMABERMAEEE)E - £

EENBREITBAERAR
&) K L AR B L B A B 4D - AE B
BN EEETHEENEDR
5879}

R_EBE—+F+_A=+—HBH EBEFN
RABITHRABRARR REGEEE
(BEBEBEPESTIELF KB E KA
([FE 2 & B E & B ) &5 5 XVER &) R &
R - HEARMDKESZFR  #E @R
BEENMBEEMNEXNVIETRESH B
MBTEMEARARARBRIAMTMEZR X
KE (BREFRSRE LAEZESFRBEEM
ZEBRNEE M RIERBOERE A
) o) RIEEF KHE &G FE3521&
HEAECRERENELCMANERS
ERBE SHOREBEETRRTEANG
ARG REBHIMOAT :

Annual Report 2017
T —LFFR

—
—



BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited

BEIRBR(EE)ERERQA

Y
N

Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEERE (E)

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short

EEREEITRAARFLFRMG -

positions in shares, underlying shares and HHBAKRGKCREEEZEDREEHESR R
debentures of the Company =

Number of

ordinary  Approximate

shares/ percentage of

underlying issued share

ordinary capital of the

shares of the Company

Company held RAQF

Name of director/ BEAT 2817

chief executive Long/short position in VEBRE [} &N

EE/BRETHRAER ordinary shares Nature of interest HEESER EZEIL

=x EERPZEFIRR BEME R4 #E (R

CHEN Qiyuan (Note 1) Long Interest in controlled 1,900,840,000 60.12%

corporation

PR BOR (M EE1) "R Pz sl A B s

CHEN Zheng He (Note 2)  Long Interest in controlled 1,900,840,000 60.12%

corporation

BRIEES (Mf5E2) o) P2 DA B M 25

WONG Sin Yung (Note 3)  Long Beneficial owner 2,100,000 0.07%

w\EEA(MES) A=) EnEAA

Notes: Ktz -

1. CHEN Qiyuan was deemed to be interested in the 1,900,840,000 shares of the 1. REMBRE R E AR E E E 5 B AFortune
Company held by Fortune Station Ltd. (‘Fortune Station”) by virtue of CHEN Qiyuan Station 7 25.72% N 24.71% 7 B 21T 5 - B EUR
and his spouse, WAN Yuhua holding 25.72% and 24.71% of the issued share capital 18 A& ¥ A Fortune Station Ltd. [ Fortune Station |
of Fortune Station, respectively. The remaining 49.57% of the issued share capital of fr ¥ A& #91,900,840,000 8% A &) A& 17 B # 25 -
Fortune Station was held by Heroic Hour Limited (‘Heroic Hour”). Heroic Hour’s entire Fortune Station &9 £ £4249.57% . 2% 17 J% 7N f3 Heroic
issued share capital is held by CHEN Zheng He as trustee for himself and on behalf of Hour Limited ([ Heroic Hour |)#5 5 + MR IE#51E A
his six brothers and sisters. The beneficial interests of CHEN Qiyuan’s six children F5E AR I H S AL 3 ik #5 B Heroic Hour B9 & 26
under the age of 18, namely CHEN Cynthia Yuping, CHEN Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, BEITRA - ARBUR18ERIA TH AL T4
CHEN Zheng Yan, CHEN Ya Shan and CHEN Bo Ling in Heroic Hour, representing BDBR €5 £F © CHEN Li Zi * CHEN Zheng Sheng * & 1E
78.00% of the issued share capital of Heroic Hour, were also attributable to CHEN i+ PR # ¥ & Chen Bo Ling AT & %= #5 5 #978.00%
Qiyuan. Heroic Hour & 3 17 J% AN TR i 1R A 57 B R BUR -

2. CHEN Zheng He was deemed to be interested in the shares of Fortune Station held by 2. RHEMIEBEASYSARBRE NN EHKIFEA
Heroic Hour by virtue of him holding the entire issued share capital of Heroic Hour (as Heroic Hour 9 & & & 3% 77 A% 7 i 4% 48 A& 7 Heroic
trustee for himself and his six brothers and sisters). Therefore CHEN Zheng He was Hour £ Fortune Station ) # 25 & # A #E 25 o
deemed to be interested in the 1,900,840,000 shares of the Company held by Fortune W BRIE 88 %% f8 & ¥ B Fortune Station FT 3 B
Station. 1,900,840,000/% 22 A1 AR 17 # #E 25 ©

3. Including 630,000 shares, which would be allotted and issued to WONG Sin Yung 3. B $5630,0000% BIBEAATBERABEERE

upon the exercise in full of the share options granted to WONG Sin Yung under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company. For details, please refer to section
headed “Share Option Scheme and Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” below.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short

ESEREETHRA R B ERMK

positions in shares, underlying shares and @ -HHHABHRERERZESR %
debentures of associated corporations =}
Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary interest in
Name of director/ Name of shares held associated
chief executive associated Long/short ¥EK  corporation
EZ/BERTHAR corporation Nature of interest position ZAEAR REBZES
=L HEEZEEHE EatE HIRR BROBE ZEZEIL
CHEN Qiyuan (Note 1) Fortune Station Beneficial owner Long 10,200 25.72%
PR B (B EE1) EnlEEA R
Interest of spouse and children  Long 25,130 63.37%
under 18 =)
LB RAMIBHE T LR
Other Long 4,327 10.91%
HAh e
CHEN Zheng He (Note 2)  Fortune Station Interest in controlled corporation  Long 19,657 49.57%
PR IE#5 (BT 2) P12 )% B M 2 R
Notes: Bt F -
1. CHEN Qiyuan was the beneficial owner of approximately 25.72% of the issued share 1. P& BR & Fortune Station 2 2% 17 I8 AN 19 £925.72% &

capital of Fortune Station. CHEN Qiyuan, as the spouse of WAN Yuhua, was deemed
to be interested in WAN Yuhua's interests in Fortune Station. The beneficial interests of
CHEN Qiyuan’s six children under the age of 18 in Heroic Hour, representing 78.00%
of the issued share capital of Heroic Hour, were also attributable to CHEN Qiyuan.
Heroic Hour held approximately 49.57% of the issued share capital of Fortune Station.

2. CHEN Zheng He was deemed to be interested in the interests of Fortune Station held
by Heroic Hour by virtue of him holding the entire issued share capital of Heroic Hour (as
trustee for himself and his six brothers and sisters).

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, so far as
known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, neither the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
to be and were entered into in the register that was required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DHAEAN RBREABIENEBEERARNE
F % £ Fortune Station ) # 25 7P 5 #E 41 » BRFR X
TRI8JE BR LA T B N L F 2 B B 2 35 A #978.00%
Heroic Hour 2 2% 17 A% 78 75 #1543 55 8 72 BR RUR ©
Heroic Hour 5 7 Fortune Station & 2 17 i% 4~ £ %Y
49.57% °

2. BREREBEAIEARBREASNUBEKRESR
Heroic Hour 2 % &8 2 % 17 I& 78 M #% %% /& 5 Heroic

Hour 7 Fortune Station #) 1 & 7 # 5 # & ©
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEERE (E)

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders of the Company

As of 31 December 2017, so far as known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, shareholders (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

ARPNBEFERENERZRR
NP
IR 2

BARBIEMESHERTRARAMN
MR —_FE—tEHF+-_A=t—H KR
(BRARREZTHRSITHABIN RE
MRBERODTEERER S KRG K

register that was required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the

SFO were as follows:

151 25 336 1'7& REAELRT

NS ARNT :

FEMELMH

Approximate
percentage of
issued share
capital of the

Number of ordinary Company
shares of the RAdE
Companyheld {TRAHZ
BENAFA EZEIK
Name of shareholder % 3 % 78 Nature of interest £ & TERROEE (B E)
Fortune Station Beneficial owner 1,900,840,000 (L) 60.12%
EHEBA
Heroic Hour Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 942,199,659 (L) 29.80%
Bz 0k B iz (B EE)
WAN Yuhua (Note 2) Beneficial owner 469,733,767 (L) 14.86%
BEET2) ExnEEA
Interest of spouse and children under the 1,223,704,392 (L) 38.70%
ageof 18
Be (B R R M 18R A F 2 2 2
Other 207,401,841 (L) 6.56%
EH A,
CHEN Cynthia Yuping (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
PR £E 47 (BY5E3) discretionary trust)
ErEXH A GEMIBFE)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
EH A,
CHEN Li Zi (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHENLi Zi (Fft 5% 3) discretionary trust)
FEREEHEAGERIEET)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
HAb
CHEN Zheng Sheng (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHEN Zheng Sheng (Fff £3) discretionary trust)
X @m A GEREBER)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
Hh



Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Approximate
percentage of
issued share
capital of the

Number of ordinary Company
shares of the RAadE
Companyheld E{TRAF >
BFEENAF A=

Name of shareholder f§ 58 £  Nature of interest i £ & TERKROEE (K20

CHEN Zheng Yan (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%

PR 1E 52 (P 5E3) discretionary trust)

EREEHEAGERIEET)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
EAh
CHEN Ya Shan (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
PR 7 = (T 5E3) discretionary trust)
St @m A GEREBER)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
Hh
CHEN Bo Ling (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHEN Bo Ling (B 7£3) discretionary trust)
B m A GEMIBERT)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
HAb

(L)—Long Position

L—trE

Notes: B 5

1. Heroic Hour was the beneficial owner of approximately 49.57% of the issued share 1. 7B #& Heroic Hour & Fortune Station 2 %% 17 % 78 #9 47
capital of Fortune Station and was deemed to be interested in the shares of the 49.57% B m # B A + Heroic Hour # 1% & 7 Fortune
Company held by Fortune Station. Station$F B KR Bt R B = -

2. WAN Yuhua was the beneficial owner of approximately 24.71% of the issued share 2. & X # AFortune Station 2 %% 17 B% 7N #9 4924.71%
capital of Fortune Station. As spouse of CHEN Qiyuan, WAN Yuhua was deemed to BEmBEAA - EARBEROES BEEILH
be interested in CHEN Qiyuan’s interests of approximately 25.72% in Fortune Station. 1R A 7 PR BB 7E Fortune Station /) # = # &
The beneficial interests of WAN Yuhua’s six children under the age of 18, namely 25.72% s o HE FEI8F BRI TR AN F2
CHEN Cynthia Yuping, CHEN Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, CHEN Zheng Yan, CHEN Ya BN &5 #F + CHEN Li Zi - CHEN Zheng Sheng * (& 1E
Shan and CHEN Bo Ling in Heroic Hour, representing 78.00% of the issued share % -+ B HE = K Chen Bo Ling Ft & 2 #F & #978.00%
capital of Heroic Hour, were also attributable to WAN Yuhua. Heroic Hour B /TR A MR AR BHRE £ 2% -

3. The interests of CHEN Cynthia Yuping, CHEN Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, CHEN Zheng 3. JBFE MR 4EHF - CHEN Li Zi ~ CHEN Zheng Sheng * [&
Yan, CHEN Ya Shan and CHEN Bo Ling were held as beneficiaries under a trust, F#Z BR#EZMCHENBo Ling AR — 25 TH =
which held 100% of the issued share capital of Heroic Hour. & A B 15 7535 B Heroic Hour 2 3 2 88 1T AR A -

Other than as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2017, the WM —-—Z—+F+—-_H=+—H KB FX

Company has not notified by any person (other than a Director or

chief

executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions

in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

IR BEALZ RARAREEBEANE
EMAL(BRARFAEETIHESTRAER
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEERE (A)

Share Option Scheme and Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme

The Company has adopted two share option schemes, a share
option scheme dated on 20 May 2009 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
and a pre-IPO share option scheme dated on 10 December 2008 (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”), the purpose of which is to give
the Directors, senior management and employees of the Group an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and help
motivate its employees to optimise their performance and efficiency,
and also to retain employees whose contributions are important to
the long-term growth and profitability of the Group.

Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme became effective on 20 May 2009 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from the date becoming effective.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company, must not, in aggregate, exceed 30.0% (or such other
percentage as may be allowed under the Listing Rules) of the total
number of Shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number
of Shares issuable to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1.0% of the Shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval at a
general meeting.

Share options granted to a connected person (or its associates) of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive Directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
and with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance at
a general meeting.

BREHBRERAMRE
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted, upon payment
of an option price to be determined by the Board from time to time.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the Board, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board, but
shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer
date, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the Offer
Date; and (i) the nominal value of a Share.

As of 1 January and 31 December 2017, no shares option was
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, and there was no share
option granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme became effective on 10
December 2008. As of 31 December 2017, options to subscribe for
an aggregate of 14,532,000 Shares were granted, representing
approximately 0.5% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the latest practicable date. No further options will be granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The above options have been conditionally granted to 42 participants
by the Company at a consideration of HK$1.0 each. The subscription
price of the pre-IPO share options would be at par value or at
HK$1.19. The pre-IPO share options may be exercised up to 8 June
2019.

REZETTRIXNZBREER
B ROBREZBOIAIRER - HH
BRENTEHHESTSEET L&B
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TeeBBR L BERE 2 AEI10F -
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A total of 4,200,000 pre-IPO share options were granted to two
executive Directors on 8 June 2009. Of which, options to subscribe
for a total of 840,000 shares held by a director resigned on 28 May
2013 were forfeited on the same date, which was partially exercised
up to 31 December 2017. Movement of these share options during
the year ended 31 December 2017 were as follows:

RZEZAFERNANB RABTWA
H1TE F A £4,200,0000 89 & X A B
BERERE-EP —FESTR_F
——FRA-_tT N \BBEOCMEZEEAHL
840,000t R EEREBE AKX B &
—E—+F+-A=1+—8 ZBERE
BN WITHE - ELEHXAFAEEAE
KEHEZz-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—H8Lt
FERHMANT

Number of share options
ROBRERE
Outstanding Outstanding Approximate
as at as at percentage of
1 January 31 December issued share
2017 Granted Exercise 2017 capital of the
8z during during Forfeited gz Company (%)
Exercise price =~ —Z—+t % the year the year during —E2—tF NG|
Name of director Date of grant (HKD) —A-8 RER RER theyear +=A=+-H ERTREANM Exercise Period
EEEB RER THEEGER) 5 R AT BF8A THE¥A RERKK 8 R AT HED(%) TEHEH
WONG SinYung 8 June 2009 Par Value 630,000 - - - 630,000 0.01 4 July 2014 to 8 June 2019
BER —TTAFERANR EE —T-NELAMAE
—ZE-NFRANE
Total 630,000 — — - 630,000 0.01
=5
Apart from the above, options to subscribe for a total of 10,332,000 it E-_ZEZT L E A N\H 1B

Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were granted to 40
employees of the Group on 8 June 2009. Of which, options to
subscribe for totalling 5,227,320 Shares granted to 28 employees
had been forfeited prior to 2017.

As at 1 January and 31 December 2017, there was a balance of
unexpired and unexercised options to subscribe for 1,653,960
Shares (which was inclusive of Mr. WONG Sin Yung’s share options).
Except for the options which had been granted as disclosed above,
no further pre-IPO share options were granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed for the year ended 31 December 2017. Details of Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 27 under the section
headed “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements” in this
annual report.
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Continuing connected transactions

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had the following
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules:

1.

Production Plant Lease Agreement

Bawang (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd (“Bawang Guangzhou”) and
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd (“Guangzhou
Bawang”) entered into a lease agreement (the “Previous
Production Plant Lease Agreement”) on 9 August 2013 for
the lease of production plant at Bawang Industrial Complex
which is located in Baiyun District, Guangzhou, the PRC. On 9
August 2016, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang
entered into a new lease agreement (the “2016 Production
Plant Lease Agreement”) in respect of the production plant
for a renewed lease term of three years commencing on 9
August 2016 at the same location but with a reduced lease
area. The 2016 Production Plant Lease Agreement is renewable
at the option of Bawang Guangzhou by giving one month’s
notice prior to the expiry of the lease. The monthly rent (inclusive
of property management fees, parking fees, usage fees for
public facilities and maintenance fees) in aggregate is
RMB799,517.29 and is fixed throughout the term of the lease.
Bawang Guangzhou has been granted a right of first refusal to
purchase the production premises under the 2016 Production
Plant Lease Agreement. Bawang Guangzhou has a right to
terminate the 2016 Product Plant Lease Agreement by giving
three months’ prior notice to Guangzhou Bawang.

On 1 December 2017, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou
Bawang entered into the New Lease Agreement (as defined
below) and terminated the 2016 Production Plant Lease
Agreement with immediate effect. Given that neither Guangzhou
Bawang nor Bawang Guangzhou was required to make any
payment to each other pursuant to the termination of the 2016
Production Plant Lease Agreement, the termination was exempt
from the announcement, reporting and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, pursuant to the 2016
Production Plant Lease Agreement, the rent paid by Bawang
Guangzhou to Guangzhou Bawang was approximately RMB8.8
million.
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EEERE (A)

As of 31 December 2017, Guangzhou Bawang was beneficially
owned as to 20% by Mr. CHEN Zheng He, the CEO and an
executive Director of the Company, and 80% by Mr. CHEN
Zheng He’s six brothers and sisters. The transactions
contemplated under the Previous Production Plant Lease
Agreement and the 2016 Production Plant Lease Agreement
therefore constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

Office Premises Lease Agreement

Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang entered into a
lease agreement (the “Previous Office Premises Lease
Agreement”) on 9 August 2013 for the lease of office premises,
which is located in Baiyun District, Guangzhou, the PRC. On 9
August 2016, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang
entered into a new lease agreement (the “2016 Office
Premises Lease Agreement’) in respect of the offices
premises for a renewed lease term of three years commencing
on 9 August 2016 at the same location but with a reduced
lease area. The 2016 Office Premises Lease Agreement is
renewable at the option of Bawang Guangzhou by giving one
month’s notice prior to the expiry of the lease. The monthly rent
(inclusive of property management fees, parking fees, usage
fees for public facilities and maintenance fees) in aggregate is
RMB83,816.04 and is fixed throughout the term of the lease.
Bawang Guangzhou has been granted a first right of refusal to
purchase the office premises under the 2016 Office Premises
Lease Agreement. Bawang Guangzhou has a right to terminate
the 2016 Office Premises Lease Agreement by giving three
months’ prior notice to Guangzhou Bawang.

On 1 December 2017, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou
Bawang entered into the New Lease Agreement (as defined
below) and terminated the 2016 Office Premises Lease
Agreement with immediate effect. Given that neither Guangzhou
Bawang nor Bawang Guangzhou was required to make any
payment to each other pursuant to the termination of the 2016
Office Premises Lease Agreement, the termination was exempt
from the announcement, reporting and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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For the year end 31 December 2017, pursuant to the 2016
Office Premises Lease Agreement, the annual rent paid by
Bawang Guangzhou to Guangzhou Bawang was approximately
RMBO0.9 million.

As of 31 December 2017, Guangzhou Bawang was beneficially
owned as to 20% by Mr. CHEN Zheng He, the CEO and an
executive Director of the Company, and 80% by Mr. CHEN
Zheng He’s six brothers and sisters. The transactions
contemplated under the Previous Office Premises Lease
Agreement and the 2016 Office Premises Lease Agreement
therefore constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company.

Lease Agreement for the Group’s production facilities,
office premises and staff dormitory

On 1 December 2017, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou
Bawang entered into a lease agreement (the “New Lease
Agreement”) for the Group’s production facilities, office
premises and staff dormitory, which is located at Bawang
Industrial Complex, 468 Guanghua 3rd Road, Baiyun District,
Guangzhou, the PRC, and terminated the 2016 Production
Plant Lease Agreement and the 2016 Office Premises Lease
Agreement both dated 9 August 2016 with immediate effect.
The New Lease Agreement is for a lease term of three years
commencing on 1 December 2017 which is renewable at the
option of Bawang Guangzhou by giving one month’s notice
prior to the expiry of the lease. The monthly rent (exclusive of
management fee and other outgoings, which are payable to an
independent third party management company) in aggregate is
RMB719,857.56 and is fixed throughout the term of the lease.
Bawang Guangzhou has been granted a right of first refusal to
purchase the aforesaid premises under the New Lease
Agreement. Bawang Guangzhou has a right to terminate the
New Lease Agreement by giving three months’ prior notice to
Guangzhou Bawang. Details of the New Lease Agreement were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 1 December
2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, pursuant to the New
Lease Agreement, the rent paid by Bawang Guangzhou to
Guangzhou Bawang was approximately RMBO.7 million.
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As of 31 December 2017, Guangzhou Bawang was beneficially
owned as to 20% by Mr. CHEN Zheng He, the CEO and an
executive Director of the Company, and 80% by Mr. CHEN
Zheng He’s six brothers and sisters. The transactions
contemplated under the New Lease Agreement therefore
constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company.

Packaging Material Supply Agreement

Bawang Guangzhou and Chenming Paper entered into a
packaging material supply agreement on 28 March 2009,
pursuant to which Chenming Paper agreed to supply packaging
material to Bawang Guangzhou from time to time at fixed unit
prices for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2009 and has been renewed subsequently (the “Packaging
Material Supply Agreement’). Bawang Guangzhou and
Chenming Paper will review the prices offered by Chenming
Paper at least once annually to ensure that they are at market
prices or at prices no less favourable than those offered to
Bawang Guangzhou by independent third-parties. The
Packaging Material Supply Agreement was renewed by
Bawang Guangzhou and Chenming Paper on 12 December
2014 for a further term of three years commencing from 1
January 2015 and on the same terms as the original Packaging
Material Supply Agreement. The Packaging Material Supply
Agreement will be automatically renewed by a term of three
years in the absence of a three-month prior written notice.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, pursuant to the
Packaging Material Supply Agreement, the annual transaction
amount for the supply of packaging material by Chenming
Paper to Bawang Guangzhou was approximately RMB9.9
million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is a Director. Chenming Paper is wholly
owned by Mr. CHEN Qiwen, who is Mr. CHEN Qiyuan’s
brother. The transactions contemplated under the Packaging
Material Supply Agreement therefore constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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The internal control and risk management functions of the Group
together with the senior management of the Group had reviewed the
continuing connected transactions of the Company for the year under
review, the scope of review included whether the premises lease
agreements were implemented in accordance with their terms,
whether the packaging materials purchased from the Company’s
connected person were purchased in accordance with the provisions
and the pricing as stipulated in the Packaging Material Supply
Agreement, and whether the transaction amount of each continuing
connected transaction had exceeded its respective annual cap. The
results of the review had been provided to the Board. During the year
under review, Bawang Guangzhou and Chenming Paper had
completed a review of the prices offered by Chenming Paper.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the above connected transactions. The Company also
confirms that during the year under review it has followed the policies
and guidelines as described above in determining the pricing and the
terms of the continuing connected transactions.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions were
entered into the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company, on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole; and the respective
annual caps are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole and the transaction amounts of such
continuing connected transactions did not exceed their respective
annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ interests in contracts of significance

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Continuing connected
transactions” in this annual report, no Director or an entity connected
with a Director has or had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party which was subsisting
during or at the end of the 2017 financial year.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ interest in
competing business

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors and their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company had
any interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

Retirement schemes

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and a
Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.
Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Corporate governance

Save as disclosed in this annual report, for the year ended 31
December 2017, all the code provisions set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules were met by the
Company.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 with the
management of the Company and the Company’s independent
auditors and recommended its adoption by the Board.
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EEERE (E)

Auditors

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEEEEAE

Directors

During the year under review, the Board consisted of six Directors,
including three executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors until Mr. Li Bida passed away on 22 November
2017. The following table sets forth certain information in respect of
our Directors:

2=

REEFERN EFECTmM A ABESFA
K BE=ZRRTEETR=-RBILIEH
TEEEETPVEEER T —tF+
— At -H#tt TREAHNNBERES
mETFER:

Name Age Position/Title

HE Fie B/

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan 56 Chairman and Executive Director

PR RUIR 52 4 ITERATES

Mr. CHEN Zheng He 29 CEO and Executive Director

PRIES ST A4 BERERITERNTES

Mr. WONG Sin Yung 63 Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director

BEREE BEEMBEERNTES

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung 56 Independent non-executive Director

RERE L B EITES

Mr. LI Bida 76 Independent non-executive Director
(Passed away on 22 November 2017)

FESRE B IFRITES
(R—ZT—tFt—A-+-RH#t)

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing 63 Independent non-executive Director

SRS A B IEITES

Executive Directors HMITESE

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, aged 56, is the co-founder of our Group, our
chairman and has been our executive Director since 12 November
2007. Mr. CHEN is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
management of our Group. Mr. CHEN has extensive experience in
the Chinese herbal HPC product industry, having been engaged in
the consumer chemical product business for over 20 years. Mr.
CHEN and Ms. WAN Yuhua entered the HPC product business by
establishing Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd. (the
predecessor entity of the Company) in 1994, to enter the HPC
product business in the PRC. Mr. CHEN was engaged in the trading
of pesticides in the PRC before the establishment of Guangzhou
Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd.. In November of 2010, Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan was recognised as the “Representative Successor of Chinese
Herbal Tea Culture” by the Guangdong Provincial Bureau of Culture.
In December 2013, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan had been honoured as the
“Distinguished People of Yunfu City” for recognition of his contribution
to the development of the city.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Mr. CHEN Zheng He, aged 29, was appointed as our executive
Director on 20 October 2014. Mr. CHEN joined the Group in March
2007 and has been officially appointed as a director of Bawang
Guangzhou since then and started to involve in the planning of sales,
marketing, advertising and promotion campaigns of Bawang
Guangzhou. Mr. CHEN was appointed as the personal assistant to
the chief executive officer of the Company since March 2012, mainly
responsible for the daily administration and management of Bawang
Guangzhou. Since mid-2013, Mr. CHEN has also been responsible
for the supervision and execution of sales, marketing, advertising and
promotion campaigns of Bawang Guangzhou. Mr. CHEN works
closely with the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company on formulating overall strategic plan and management of
the Group, and executing strategic plans in marketing, and sales and
distribution. Mr. CHEN has been appointed as the CEO and
Remuneration Committee Member with effect from 9 December
2015. Mr. CHEN obtained the degree of bachelor of commerce from
the University of Toronto in 2012. Mr. CHEN is the son of Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan, the chairman and an executive Director of the Company.

Mr. WONG Sin Yung, aged 63, is our Chief Financial Officer and
executive Director. Mr. WONG joined our Group in April 2008 and
was appointed as our executive Director on 10 December 2008. Mr.
WONG was also appointed as our Chief Financial Officer and our
Company Secretary since December 2008. He is responsible for the
finance management and control, accounting, auditing, company
secretarial and investor relations of our Group. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. WONG was an executive director of China Ting Group
Holdings Limited (03398), from 2005 to 2008, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. WONG was the chief
accountant and finance manager of Mark Wong & Associates (Industrial
Consultants) Limited from 1988 to 1992 and from 1994 to 2003
respectively. He also worked for a certified public accountant firm
from 1992 to 1994. Mr. WONG has over 30 years experience in
corporate finance, accounting, auditing, corporation administration,
and project consulting. He is an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. WONG obtained a
master’s degree in human resource management from Macquarie
University in 1996 and a master’s degree in business administration
from The University of Hong Kong in 1999.
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Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, aged 56, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 10 December 2008. He is currently the
Chief Executive Officer of SW Corporate Services Group Limited, a
specialty company and secretarial, corporate governance and
compliance services provider to companies in pre-IPO and post-IPO
stages. Prior to that, he was the director and head of listing services
of an independent integrated corporate services provider. He has
over 20 years of senior management experience including acting as
the executive director, chief financial officer and company secretary,
most of which are in the areas of finance, accounting, internal control
and regulatory compliance, corporate governance and secretarial
work for listed issuers including major red chip companies. He has
led or participated in a number of significant corporate finance
projects including listings, mergers and acquisitions as well as
issuance of debt securities. Dr. NGAI was a member of the Working
Group on Professional Services under the Economic Development
Commission of The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region from
January 2013 to March 2018. He is the past president of the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, a fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, a fellow of Hong
Kong Institute of Directors, a member of Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute, a member of the Qualification and Examination
Board of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
member of the General Committee of the Chamber of Hong Kong
Listed Companies and Finance Expert Consultant of the Ministry of
Finance of the People’s Republic of China. He obtained a doctoral
degree in Finance from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics, a master’s degree in corporate finance from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, a master’s degree in business administration
from Andrews University of Michigan and a degree of Bachelor of
Laws (Honours) at University of Wolverhampton. Dr. NGAI was an
independent non-executive director of China Railway Construction
Corporation Limited (01186) from 2007 to 2014, Sany Heavy
Equipment International Holdings Company Ltd (00631) from 2009 to
2015, China Coal Energy Company Limited (01898) from 2010 to
2017 and China Railway Group Limited (00390) from 2014 to 2017,
and is currently an independent non-executive director of SITC
International Holdings Company Limited (01308), Bosideng
International Holdings Limited (03998), Powerlong Real Estate
Holdings Limited (01238), Beijing Capital Grand Limited (formerly
known as Beijing Capital Juda Limited) (01329), Health and
Happiness (H&H) International Holding Limited (formerly known as
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Biostime International Holdings Limited) (01112), Yangtze Optical
Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company (06869), BBMG
Corporation (02009), TravelSky Technology Limited (00696), China
HKBridge Holdings Limited (02323) and China Communications
Construction Company Limited (01800), the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange and/or the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
Dr. NGAl is also an independent director of LDK Solar Co. Ltd (LDKYQ),
which was previously listed on the New York Stock Exchange, and is
currently listed on the OTC Pink Limited Information and SPI Energy
Co., Limited (SPI), the shares of which are listed on NASDAQ.

Mr. LI Bida, aged 76, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 10 December 2008. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. LI was the head of Department of Lawyers, the Ministry of Justice
of the PRC, currently known as Department of Directing Lawyers and
Notarization, Ministry of Justice, from 1988 to 1992. He was also an
arbitrator in China International Economics and Trade Arbitration
Commission from 1989 to 1990. From 1992 to 1995, he served as
standing deputy head of State Trademark Bureau. From 1992 to
2001, he held various positions in State Administration of Industry
and Commerce including the head of the Fair Trading Bureau and the
head of Registration Bureau. He was a consultant with a number of
companies, including Galanz Group from 2001 to 2003, Perfect (China)
Co., Ltd. and Nanfong Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd. from 2001 to 2005,
Ricoh China Co., Ltd. from 2005 to 2006, and NU Skin (China) Co.,
Ltd. from 2006 to 2007. He is currently a consultant of Intellectual
Property Institute of Peking University, professor of Renmin University
of China Law School and Capital University of Economics and
Business. Mr. LI obtained a bachelor’'s degree in law from Hubei
University in 1965. Mr. LI passed away on 22 November 2017.
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Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing (3R3£& % 4), aged 63, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 13 November 2014. Mr.
CHEUNG has around 30 years of experience in information
technology, financial accounting, auditing and management. Mr.
CHEUNG is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Since February 1999, Mr. CHEUNG has been a
director and lead consultant of Sunplex Consultants Limited, a
company providing human resources management and information
technology consultancy services to its clients (including government
organisations and private companies). Mr. CHEUNG had been an
independent director of Principal Trust Company (Hong Kong) Limited
(formerly known as AXA China Region Trustees Limited) from August
1999 to August 2015 and an independent non-executive director of
Bank of Communications Trustee Limited from November 2003 to
January 2018. Mr. CHEUNG has been an independent non-executive
director of ENM Holdings Limited (00128) since June 2016, Trio
Industrial Electronics Group Limited (01710) since February 2017,
and Kin Pang Holdings Limited (01722) since November 2017,
companies whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. CHEUNG had held several positions, including
Assistant Manager, Manager and Senior Manager between
September 1980 and July 1991 in Coopers & Lybrand. Mr. CHEUNG
had been a partner of Coopers & Lybrand since March 1995, and
had been a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers since Coopers &
Lybrand was merged with Price Waterhouse into
PricewaterhouseCoopers in October 1998 until his resignation in May
1999. Mr. CHEUNG was Director of Operations and Finance of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants between July 2004 and
April 2008 and a consultant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants between April 2008 and August 2008. Mr. CHEUNG
obtained a Bachelor of Commerce from The University of Calgary in
Canada in June 1979.
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF
BAWANG INTERNATIONAL (GROUP) HOLDING LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BaWang
International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 68 to 166, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BYRBERE ()

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that,

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of trade receivables

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on pages 98 to 100.

The key audit matter
HRERSER

in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERPNEERLE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had trade receivables
of approximately RMB41,511,000, which were significant
to the Group’s total current assets.
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We have identified valuation of trade receivables as a key
audit matter because the estimates on the provision of
individual debt entail a significant degree of management
judgement and may be subject to management bias.
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Our audit procedures included, amongst others,
evaluating management’s assessment of the indicators
of impairment and management’s controls relating to the
valuation of trade receivables. In addition, we have
performed substantive testing and analytical procedures.
These procedures included challenging the
appropriateness of management’s assumptions and
management estimates in relation to the valuation of
trade receivables.
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We have discussed with management regarding the
level, ageing and recoverability of trade receivables. We
have considered the Group’s previous experience of bad
debt exposure and the individual counterparty credit risk.
We have assessed the recoverability of overdue
unprovided debt with reference to the historical levels of
bad debt expense and credit history of the
counterparties. We have also considered the consistency

f judgements regarding the recoverability of trade
receivables to consider whether there is evidence of
management bias through discussion with management
on their rationale and obtaining evidence to support
judgement areas.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BYRBERE ()

Valuation of inventories

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on pages 96 and 97.

The key audit matter
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERPNEELE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had inventories of
approximately RMB47,581,000, which were significant to
the Group’s total current assets.
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Taking into account of the variety of products and relatively
short life cycles of the Group’s products, there are risks on
obsolescence of long aged inventories which may affect
the valuation of inventories held as at year end.
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We have identified valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter because the estimates on the net realisable values
of inventories entail a significant degree of management
judgement and may be subject to management bias.

BMEFENRENGEEABREFTSZE BAHE
EMTLWT """"" ERFESREEBNEARAE  EF
EEFEERRENER

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
methodology and assumptions used by management in
calculating the inventory provisions. We have reviewed
management’s identification of slow moving and
obsolete inventories, and critically assessed whether
appropriate provisions had been established for slow
moving and obsolete items. When considering
management’s assessment, we have also taken into
account the most recent prices achieved on sales across
different products.
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We have also assessed the reliability of management’s
assessment by considering the utilisation or release of
previously recorded provisions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYZEMBE (&)

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company and
Audit and Risk Management Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYZEMBE (&)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYZEMBE (&)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Management Committee
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYZEMBE (&)

From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Hon Kei, Anthony.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong
28 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

GERERAMZEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ—%

—tFt-A=+—RLLFE

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AR®EF T AR T T
Revenue = X 7 264,215 264,229
Cost of sales i & A AR (136,902) (137,699)
Gross profit EF 127,313 126,530
Other income N 8 14,162 28,001
Changes in fair value less costs to sell EYEERNREBER
in respect of biological assets HERANE BB 18 - 29
Selling and distribution costs $HE o i (93,726) (80,080)
Administrative expenses THRAX (27,866) (30,458)
Other expenses HAF % (157) (1,455)
Finance costs V%ER 9 (495) (1,473)
Profit before taxation K BT 5 5 B )8 19,231 41,094
Taxation FTigfi 10 4) 2,610
Profit for the year attributable to owners of XA B #E B A FE1L
the Company ZERNFE 11 19,227 43,704
Other comprehensive income/(expense)  H i 2 EU A/ (X H)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently H & B] & # 77 #8 Z 18 75
to profit or loss: mIEA :
Exchange differences arising on translation  /§4p ¥ k& 2
of foreign operations ME N Z5 477 (1,740)
Profit and total comprehensive income KARHEEAREENRN
for the year attributable to owners of AN REEPABEE
the Company 19,704 41,964
Earnings per share BERER 14
Basic HAK RMBO0.6081 RMB1.4292
cents cents
ARY0.608111 AR%1.42921l
Diluted E RMB0.6080 RMB1.4289
cents cents

AR%0.60801L A K #1.42891L




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SEMBMRR R

As at 31 December 2017 R=Z—+F+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—ZE—tHF —E-RE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AR®EF T AR T T
Non-current asset IRBEE

Property, plant and equipment W WEE&E 17 132,403 137,237

Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 47,581 41,827
Biological assets EEE 18 - 457
Trade and other receivables 5 & E YR 3k 20 45,458 65,584
Amounts due from related parties e L A B O BRIB 32(a) 6,947 8,075
Pledged bank deposits HEHRPITFR 21 - 10
Deposit with bank RITTER 21 20,000 20,000
Bank balances and cash WITEHRRE S 21 46,050 22,312
166,036 158,265

Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M AT BR 5K 22 117,439 127,121
Amounts due to related parties JiE 1<) R HEs O BUIB 32(a) 1,346 660
Bank borrowings RITE 25 - 5,610
Income tax payables JE P45 350 9,070 9,066
Provisions ATIRER 23 338 2,503
128,193 144,960
Net current assets REBEEFE 37,843 13,305
Net assets EEFRE 170,246 150,542
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

meBBRRE (R

As at 31 December 2017 R=Z—+F+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AR%EF T AR T T
Capital and reserves [ R
Share capital [N 26(a) 277,878 277,878
Reserves Bt 26(b) (107,632) (127,336)
Total equity R 170,246 150,542

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 166 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan
FoR RSOIR
Director

EFE

Mr. CHEN Zheng He

BRIEER

Director

EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEREHK

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EWNGE: 352D 31
Share Share PRC statutory Capital Merger Translation Other Accumulated
capital  premium reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
REEE
BRA  RAEE RE BiRfE AHHEE ERRE HieR6 ZitER RELH
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARBTR AR¥KTT ARETT
(note 26(b)) (note 26(b))  (note 26(b))  (note 26(b))  (note 26(b))  (note 26(b))
(Mizros)  (Fst26) (P=t26() (FEE26(0) (FiEE26(0) (i 526(0)
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—~E—f—H 256,705 1,356,369 49,887 2,814 8,468 (29,185) 7,752 (1,611,355) 41,455
Profi for the year EREF - - - - - - - 43704 43704
Other comprehensive expense Hip2EER
for the year
Exchange differences arisingon SN ETKBE 2
translation of foreign operations EiZE - - - - - (1,740) - - (1,740)
Total comprehensive (expense) FREAEE)
income for the year WAEE - - - - - (1,740) - 43,704 41,964
Deemed contribution arising from IR IR E R 4t #h 4 B E K
non-interest bearing loans from MEEZRREE
controlling shareholders (GEXYD)
(note 32(n) - - - - - - 1,669 - 1,669
Issue of shares by way of placing LA EF A BITRE
(note 26(a)) (Wi 7%26(a)) 21,173 44,462 - - - - - - 65,635
Share issue expenses REXTER - (181) - - - - - - (181)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—-~"F+-A=+-H 277,878 1,400,650 49,887 2,814 8,468 (30,925) 9,421 (1,567,651) 150,542
At 1 January 2017 R-E-+&—-F—-H 277,878 1,400,650 49,887 2,814 8,468 (30,925) 9,421 (1,567,651) 150,542
Profit for the year FREF - = = = = = = 19,277 19,277
Other comprehensive income for — E 2 B YA
the year
Exchange differences arising on BNEBRBE Y
translation of foreign operations ERZZ = = = = = a1 = = 417
Total comprehensive income FR2ARAEE
for the year = = = = = 477 - 19,227 19,704
At 31 December 2017 RZF—+F+=fA=+—H 277,878 1,400,650 49,887 2,814 8,468  (30,448) 9421 (1,548424) 170,246
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KRETE
Profit before taxation 7 5 A1) E 19,231 41,094
Adjustments for: FLTRANVEH % -
Bank interest income RITH B U A (379) (406)
Changes in fair value less costs to sell in EWMEERABEBHEE
respect of biological assets A Z B8 e — 29
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BEREKEITE
equipment 17,159 11,898
Finance costs A& AR 495 1,473
(Reversal of)/impairment loss recognised in & 5 & i 5k 18 >~
respect of trade receivables BB B K RO (5,136) 2,425
Loss on disposals of property, plant and BEEME BMEREHEEBX
equipment 34 1,455
Allowance for inventories GFEMKE 112 1,427
Reversal of allowance for inventories FEBKERD - (243)
Obsolete inventories written-off BEATFERE 3,370 2,493
Write-back of payables for property, plant B EB%E¥ BE K&
and equipment HE 2 B R = (4,083)
Write-back of trade and other payables B 5 K H b e 5 5 (4,947) —
Provision for litigation FLFHIRE A — 722
Operating cash flows before working capital &8 & 4 & & 51~
changes KEESRE 29,939 58,226
Increase in inventories FEE M (8,779) (4,583)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other B 5 & H b & W SR IE R
receivables (1% jju) 25,262 (3,215)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from JrE U B B T 3k TR A/ (BEn)
related parties 1,128 (8,000)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 K& HAth & A R IE R (2,250) (34,902)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to JE -} R8s T kIR E hn/ CRLAY)
related parties 686 (6,641)
Decrease in provisions FTIRERR S (2,165) (2,045)
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) KReESEBEE/(FFA®
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEeFEE 43,821 (1,160)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

GERERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ —Z—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tfF —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BETE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB E W% W E L& E (14,952) (1,234)
Bank interest received BEUWERITH B 379 406
Withdrawal/(placement) of pledged bank RE/ (7)) 2 R TT
deposits EZN 10 (10)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant B EYWZE - HE &
and equipment RIEHPT1F FRIE 4 236
Plantation expenditure of biological assets 4 ¥ & EfEE X - (14)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZBFANREFE
ACTIVITIES (14,559) (616)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mMEEH
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER (9,435) -
Interest paid BARF A (495) -
Proceed from issue of new shares BEITET AR TS 3K I8 = 65,635
Proceeds from loans from controlling 7 {% A% SR 16 BN AT 1S 3K
shareholders - 33,566
New bank borrowings raised FILIRITHE R 3,825 5,610
Repayments of loans from controlling EBETEREEER
shareholders = (91,396)
Share issue expenses KEZETER - (181)
NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM FINANCING @& EZ&8 (FrA)/EEWN
ACTIVITIES BEFHE (6,105) 13,234
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRBEEEEYWEM
EQUIVALENTS FE 23,157 11,458
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REDZBRERRASEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 22,312 9,604
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE E R & B &
CHANGES 581 1,250
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERZBEERASEZEY
END OF THE YEAR
representing bank balances and cash BIEIR1THEF R ® 46,050 22312
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited
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General and Basis of Preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Its immediate holding company is Fortune Station Limited,
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and
is owned as to: (1) 49.57% by Heroic Hour Limited, a company
that is beneficially owned as to 22.00% by Mr. CHEN Zheng
He, the chief executive officer and an executive director of the
Company, and 78.00% by Mr. CHEN Zheng He’s six brothers
and sisters; (2) 25.72% by Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the Chairman of
the board of directors of the Company (the “Directors”); and (3)
24.71% by Ms. WAN Yuhua, a former director and the former
chief executive officer of the Company (collectively referred to
as the “Controlling Shareholders”).

The address of the registered office is at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and the principal place of business is at
Bawang Industrial Complex, 468 Guanghua 3rd Road, Baiyun
District, Guangzhou, 510450, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
manufacturing and sales of the household and personal care
products.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$"). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the
primary economic environment in which the principal
subsidiaries of the Group operate in the PRC.

AR HERSFMKIL AE
REMERLABITEEET BB A
REBMBERAA(HBZAT]) £
HEBRBRARAEEBERLES
([EB R =Bt B ) T it ®Fortune
Station Limited » H &% 5 2 (1) 49.57%
5 Heroic Hour Limited # & - Heroic
Hour Limited £ 22.00% % #& i 48 A &)
CEENTERRITESHRIESL
EEmFEH M T 278.00%8] A
BRIEBEEZ AU BHEREF
) 25.72% M ARRINEEL EER
RUBRLEHA QB 24.71%H AR
AT EEMATERATERE
EZITHE (GEIEREER]) -

7K N B 7 3 S5 BE Y Hb AE & Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands * £ B & ¥ B A E A
EHME(THEDEMNMTEER
B =4685 B T T E K
510450 °
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[(AEBEDNIBERELERHER
EDSEEPNG S5 -nE VA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised IFRSs, which include IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IAS(s)”), amendments and
interpretations (“Int(s)”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the IFRS Interpretations
Committee (“IFRIC”) of the IASB.

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs

2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Except as described below, the application of other new and
revised IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
amendments do not prescribe a specific method to fulfil the
new disclosure requirements. However, the amendments
indicate that one way is to provide a reconciliation between the
opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from financing
activities.

The application of amendments to IAS 7 has resulted in
additional disclosures on the Group’s financing activities,
especially a reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances in the consolidated statement of financial position for
liabilities arising from financing activities is provided in note 33.
On initial application of the amendments, the Group is not
required to provide comparative information for preceding
periods. Apart from the additional disclosure in note 33, the
Directors considered that these amendments have had no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

5] & &AS 5T Bl R B
% B (T B PR Bt 75

RAFE NEESERATHHET
MEETBEERMBERE LR B
HERerERREe RERS:
EAEEe 2 BERMBRERER
EemmuBIRM%EREER - B
RErTEAET R RE((RE] -

B B B 7% 3R 45 B B B 75 R 45 2= R

R Z BRI AR 2 FEE
(ZE—mF=E
“E-RFEE)

B B = 5t 2 Al WEREE

FBIHRZIEBEIAR

B BR & 51 %l REHEBERERE

F12 BRI A EREEE

BT XpriE  RAFERAEM
¥ el MARAE 7] /9 B BR B 75 i & 22 R
HAEERAFELBEFENER
BREALRR R/ FEMBERRE
TRERBEYEBEARZE -

HEEREEME7TREEHBZ
31

ZEBIERERBREHEMBHRE
CREEATERETMELESR
BEEH(BIEREeREEEZEIR
FEMEE) TIREEH - ZFER]
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MNisEAZEEIR  AREHE
BT HERERLRER - R
BBEH 2 BINKEIN AR AE
ERS %%&ﬁfﬁk$éﬁﬁ
KEZGAVBRREXNEATE

Annual Report 2017
T —LFFR

~J]
(&)



BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited

BEIRBR(EE)ERERQA

~]
=p)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

ERGERKRENOMITRIEES
ATERMEREER

REBIRIEAEA T E RME
) R A S F AT Mo 4R {8 AT B R B %

IFRS 9 (2014)

IFRS 15

IFRS 16

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IFRS 9

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'
Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
20142016 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

SR

B B B 7S R SR T A

XERIFE IR

(ZZE—mF)

Bl B B 7S RERFEHZ

X BRI E 1558 U 25

B B B 7S R HE?

AR ZE 1658
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ERIZ BRI AR Bl FEM#
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B B B 75 3R & B B B 7% R 5 2

ERIZ BRI AR Bl 2 & & Mg
(ZZE—HF=E
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B0 B B 7S R BHZARZH

HERIFE2R 2 DM E

BET A

B B B 7S R i FA B B B 7 R

HBIFEARZ HAERIFEIHR

1EFT AR SR ITAR
B B B 7S R
AERIZE AR
REER

BB B i TE A 5 1 B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Revised International

Financial Reporting
(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs

effective (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 40

IFRIC 22

IFRIC 23

F N R

Standards (“IFRS(s)”)

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures®

Transfer of Investment Property’
Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
Effective date not yet been determined.

issued but not yet

EE%?&&%%I&J
7% & & 2 Bl ([ Bl R B 75 3R
S48 ]) @)
BEGENREROHITREE
BT P B O 4B 45 2 B ()

AR KRs BEEHHAE

ERE105E 2 AHBEREZ
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sHERIFE 28 B
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Re st 2R FrEMEDR - HER
F199R 2 o 4 E 2
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B B & 5T 2 Al B NE A
F285R 2 TEHEH
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By e KE B E
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B0 B B 7S R HNEE 22 5 M T8 1+
ERIRE ZE
LZEGE225

B B B IS R F 1S 15 IR /Y
A RIF %% HE M2

Z 82235

P R CE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

The Directors anticipate that, except as described below, the
application of other new and revised IFRSs will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.

IFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was
amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, IFRS 9 was further amended to bring
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will
allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities in
the consolidated financial statements. A finalised version of
IFRS 9 was issued in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements
of IFRS 9 that were issued in previous years with limited
amendments to the classification and measurement by
introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive income”
(“FVTOCI”) measurement category for certain financial assets.
The finalised version of IFRS 9 also introduces an “expected
credit loss” model for impairment assessments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)

(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet

effective (Continued)

IFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of IFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
IFRS 9 (2014) to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In
addition, under IFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the
fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

IFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of IFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:
(Continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9
(2014) requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

° In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s
expected credit losses on its financial assets and
commitments to extend credit were added. Those
requirements eliminate the threshold that was in IAS 39 for
the recognition of credit losses. Under the impairment
approach in IFRS 9 (2014), it is no longer necessary for a
credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised. Instead, expected credit losses and changes
in those expected credit losses should always be
accounted for. The amount of expected credit losses is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)

(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet

effective (Continued)

IFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of IFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:
(Continued)

IFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more
closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by companies when hedging their
financial and non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-
based approach, IFRS 9 (2014) looks at whether a risk
component can be identified and measured and does not
distinguish between financial items and non-financial
items. The new model also enables an entity to use
information produced internally for risk management
purposes as a basis for hedge accounting. Under IAS 39,
it is necessary to exhibit eligibility and compliance with the
requirements in IAS 39 using metrics that are designed
solely for accounting purposes. The new model also
includes eligibility criteria but these are based on an
economic assessment of the strength of the hedging
relationship. This can be determined using risk
management data. This should reduce the costs of
implementation compared with those for IAS 39 hedge
accounting because it reduces the amount of analysis that
is required to be undertaken only for accounting purposes.

mﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁkﬂ
7% ) & 25 A ([ Bl BR 81 %% 3R
S48 ]) @)
CHEGERKRENPFTITREE
FTEBEMBEESHER (&)
MRS ElPoR(—S—n
F)&RT A ()

BEREVERELENER(ZF—MN
FlzETEBRESMMOT : (8)

e BHEREFHEHREEAUFIR(=ZF
—mE)SIAFENA BEUA
NCIbSEI LR E SR A
B ot R B B IR R B 1T 2 E
Bt ERUNRAIBEEZT
% BB B S s A R FE o5
—E-EF)EERBREBL Z
B @R MEtE ML TED
TRIABKIFESHMIAR - A
FRAMEERAERLRER
BEEBNRAREZERE
RYEHEETZER - REEK
SRFEREIR  RTAE RE
ST B ER & AT 2 R399 2 R
EoERAESEBEMMES
ZE BB E HRAT
BREAEBKME  EABREGH
DEREBREPHEERE 2K
Bl - BRIRG AT ARRE
BHEEBET - AR ZEN AR
PEREHENBETZOMN
B ML BR S ERIF39
SHmgstmE AR
HATROAR

Annual Report 2017
T —LFFR

0
i §



BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited

BEIRBR(EE)ERERQA

(=]
N

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

IFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of IFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:
(Continued)

IFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.

The Directors has performed a preliminary analysis of the
Group’s financial instruments as at 31 December 2017 based
on the fact and circumstances existing at that date. The
Directors have assessed the impact of adoption of IFRS 9 (2014)
on the Group’s results and financial position, including the
classification categories and the measurement of financial
assets, and disclosures, as follows:

(@)  Classification and measurement
The Directors expect to continue recognising initially at fair
value for all financial assets which are subsequently
measured at amortised costs. The Directors anticipate
that the adoption of IFRS 9 (2014) will not have a material
impact on the classification and measurement of the
financial assets.

(b) Impairment

The Directors expect to apply the simplified approach and
record lifetime expected credit losses that are estimated
based on the present value of all cash shortfalls over the
remaining life of all of its trade receivables. The application
of the expected credit loss model may result in earlier
recognition of credit losses for trade and other receivables
and increase the amount of impairment allowance
recognised for these items.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

IFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)  Impairment (Continued)

The Directors will perform a more detailed analysis which
considers all reasonable and supportable information for
the estimation of the effect of adoption of IFRS 9 (2014).
Based on the preliminary assessment, the Directors
expect that the adoption of IFRS 9 (2014) will not have
other material impact on amounts reported in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Thus, IFRS 15 introduces a model that applies to
contracts with customers, featuring a contract-based five-step
analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and
when revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

()  Identify the contract with the customer;
(i) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
(i)  Determine the transaction price;

(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

(v} Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.
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Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

IFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the
consolidated financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from contracts with customers.

IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

IFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.

The major sources of revenue of the Group are sales of goods.
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised for each of the
performance obligations when control over a good or service is
transferred to a customer. The Directors have preliminarily
assessed each type of the performance obligations and
consider that the performance obligations are similar to the
current identification of separate revenue components under
IAS 18 Revenue. Furthermore, IFRS 15 requires the transaction
price to be allocated to each performance obligation on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis, which may affect the
timing and amounts of revenue recognition, and results in more
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. However,
the Directors expect that the adoption of IFRS 15 will not have
a material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised based on the existing business model of the Group
as at 31 December 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and their treatment in the financial
statements of both lessors and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces a
single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with the lease term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset has a low value.

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which consists of the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, plus any
lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, the
initial estimate of restoration costs and any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee. A lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date.
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Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. Lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability,
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payment
made, and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-
substance fixed lease payments. Depreciation and impairment
expenses, if any, on the right-of-use asset will be charged to
profit or loss following the requirements of IAS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment, while interest accrual on lease liability will
be charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

IFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards including
IAS 17 Leases and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

IFRS 16 will become effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019 with early application permitted
provided that the entity has applied IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers at or before the date of initial
application of IFRS 16.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB25,823,000 as disclosed
in note 29. Out of this balance, an amount of RMB17,142,000
represents operating leases with original lease terms of over
one year in which the Group will recognise right-to-use assets
and corresponding lease liabilities unless they are exempt from
the reporting obligations under IFRS 16. The Directors expect
that, apart from the changes in the measurement, presentation
and disclosure as indicated above, the adoption of IFRS 16 will
not have other material impact on amounts reported in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for biological assets that are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in
the accounting policies set out below.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (i.e. its subsidiaries).

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over the
investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (i) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s returns.

The Company reassess whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control of the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the
Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

FEESF R @)
IEeHBERNDOT :

REeRBZRE

FAEMBRERERARARIHEE
HERBEFAR) NPT BHRS -

2HSIEAREES ¢ () R
RED (R RKESTWSEM
Bk Em AR [, K i)
HZBRRETTEENMBRENF
EAREBEDRE -

fMAEEENERBER Lt =BG
HEPE AU LRBEZE( K
SEBEFFIHERTHREAR
B I -

EAREERGWE R E Z &5
R ZEMBARZEBERKA
pMEAEEREMB AR ZE
B RERF X IE A B

B /8~ B 2 WA K B Sz B AN & B EX
SEblgz BREREBE R EES
BZAEHAKRABRERNEME
EHR P e

BalhHEttermbias SR REB
RARBEBEAMB ARz 2mE
DHRBEHEBRNARBEEA -

SEANRSERBCRAZCEENE
B EEHEZ WA FAXUARR

ERE BREERERFEIEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods sold in the normal course of
business, net of discounts allowed, estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event that lease
incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item that
forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions, except to the extent
that they are included in the cost of inventories not yet
recognised as an expense.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in
the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods, or for administrative
purposes and bearer plants, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress and immature bearer plants less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Bearer plants are classified as immature until the produce can
be commercially harvested. At that point, immature bearer
plants are reclassified to bearer plants and depreciation
commences. Immature bearer plants are measured at
accumulated costs.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Biological assets

Biological assets are living plants involved in the agricultural
activities of the transformation of biological assets into
agricultural produce for sale or into additional biological assets.
Biological assets are measured at fair value less costs to sell at
initial recognition and at the end of each reporting period while
agricultural produce harvested from the biological assets are
measured at fair value less costs to sell at the point of harvest,
which is deemed as the cost at that date when the agricultural
produce becomes inventory or additional biological assets.

A gain or loss arising on the initial recognition of a biological
asset at fair value less costs to sell and from a change in fair
value less costs to sell of a biological asset is included in profit
or loss for the period in which it arises. A gain or loss arising on
the initial recognition of agricultural produce at fair value less
costs to sell is included in profit or loss for the period in which it
arises.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Biological assets (Continued)

If an active market exists for a biological asset or agricultural
produce with reference to comparable species, growing
condition and expected yield of the crops, the quoted price in
that market is adopted for determining the fair value of that
asset. If an active market does not exist, the Group uses the
most recent market transaction price, provided that there has
not been a significant change in economic circumstances
between the transaction date and the end of reporting period,
or the market prices for similar assets adjusted to reflect
differences to determine fair values or as determined by
independent professional valuers.

Subsequent expenditure relating to producing and harvesting
biological assets are charged to expense when incurred and
costs that increase the number of units of biological assets
owned or controlled by the Group are capitalised in the carrying
amount of the biological assets

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research and development activities is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method, and include expenditure incurred in acquiring
the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition.
In case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of the production overheads
based on normal operating capacity. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventories (Continued)

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash
and short-term deposits as defined above.

Deposits with a maturity over three months that are not readily
convertible into known amounts of cash are defined as deposit
with bank in the consolidated financial statements.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, amounts due from
related parties, pledged bank deposits, deposit with bank and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss of financial assets below).
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and
other receivables, that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 30 to
90 days, as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance amount are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade or other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into other financial
liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the assets expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material). When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (capital reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to capital
reserve.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s share-based
payment transactions, leasing transactions, net realisable value
of inventories and value in use of property, plant and equipment
for the purpose of impairment assessment, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value measurements
into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as
follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value hierarchy
for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value on
recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated useful life of property, plant and
equipment

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment on a
straight-line basis between the rates of 4% to 50% per annum,
commencing from the date the property, plant and equipment
are available for use. The estimated useful lives that the Group
places the property, plant and equipment into productive use
reflects the Directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. As at 31 December
2017, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
was approximately RMB132,403,000 (2016: RMB137,237,000).
Depreciation of approximately RMB17,159,000 (2016:
RMB11,898,000) has been recognised for the year.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of trade
and other receivables was approximately RMB45,458,000 (2016:
RMB65,584,000), net of accumulated impairment losses of
approximately RMB6,810,000 (2016: RMB11,946,000).
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Allowance of inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of
each class of inventories is recognised as a provision for
diminution in the value of inventories.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the normal
course of business less the estimated costs to completion and
the estimated expenses and related taxes necessary to make
the sale. For inventories with committed sales orders or active
market, the Group estimates the net realisable value with
reference to the selling prices set out in the committed sales
orders or in the active market. For inventories without
committed sales orders or active market, the Group carefully
estimates the net realisable value based on available information
and reasonable and supportive assumptions on expected
selling prices, manufacturing costs, selling expenses, sales tax
and etc. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of
inventories was approximately RMB47,581,000 (2016:
RMB41,827,000), net of accumulated allowance of
approximately RMB2,615,000 (2016: RMB2,503,000).

Impairment on property, plant and equipment

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for
certain property, plant and equipment, recoverable amount of
these assets needs to be determined. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in
use. It is difficult to precisely estimate fair value because quoted
market prices for these assets may not be readily available. In
determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to items such as level of revenue
and amount of operating costs and discount rate. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining an amount
that is reasonable approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of items such as revenue and
operating costs. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment was approximately
RMB132,403,000 (2016: RMB137,237,000), net of
accumulated impairment losses of approximately
RMB113,622,000 (2016: RMB113,622,000).
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Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
not yet used and temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilised, management
judgement is required to assess the probability of future taxable
profits. Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
assets to be recovered.

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes of biological assets

The Group’s biological assets are measured at fair value less
costs to sell for financial reporting purposes. The management
determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. The management works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
financial controller reports the valuers’ findings to the Directors
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the
assets.
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4.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes of biological assets (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of the assets. Note 18 provides detailed information about
the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in
the determination of the fair value of biological assets. As at 31
December 2016, the carrying amount of biological assets was
approximately RMB457,000 (2017: Nil).

Provision in respect of litigation

Provision for the expected cost of legal obligations is recognised
at the Directors’ best estimate and with reference to legal
advice of the expenditure required to settle the Group’s legal
obligations. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of
provision was approximately RMB338,000 (2016:
RMB2,503,000). Details are set out in note 23.

Capital Risk Management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to
maintain creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bank borrowings, net of pledged bank deposits,
deposit with bank and bank balances and cash and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share capital
and reserves.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.
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5. Capital Risk Management (Continued)

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

6. Financial Instruments

BEAREMRERE @

ARBEEBYFEENELRSE
B-REHERN EFTEEELK
R ERERBNEREREZ R R
BARRESER AKEHEBR
BT D BUTHEFREDR
BER NFHEBBERRE -

TRIA

(a) Categories of financial instruments () &MIAFER
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARBETIT
Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables (including cash & 7k & fg I 70 18 (81 4%
and cash equivalents) RekReFEEY) 109,152 112,680
Financial liabilities cRAas
Other financial liabilities at amortised VA S A AR B BR 2
cost EtmemaR 93,533 119,085

(b)

Financial risk management objective and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
pledged bank deposits, deposit with bank, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, amounts due to
related parties and bank borrowings. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 0.

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)

(#)

Market risk h % B B
Currency risk B %= b2

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Approximately 5% (2016: 5%) of the Group’s sales is
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the Group entity making the sale. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
The Group will monitor foreign exchange exposure and
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

Z!K/AETBET%FEEJW%’AETZ%
ERINEFE AEBAMmME
%LWI\I:H“°$'§@Z’75%(_
TE-RNEFE: %) ZHENE
EERBINGEEBEUINZEES
8- AKE B AL E (T 5N
%ﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬂ(% AEE g ETEINE
Rl mBELBER TE8EE
%LT/EP%KQ\\EH[%”

AEBEUINEFEZERKEE

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at FEBEERERARZER

the end of the reporting period are as follows: BT :
Assets Liabilities
BE =R

2017 2016 2017 2016

—E—tF ZZT—RF ZEBE—tF ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETT AR®TR AR®TT

RMB AR 426 63 10,079 9,014

HK$ BT 1 5 — —

United States dollars =7t ([ZE7T])
(“USD”) 819 618 - —
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. TR
(b) Financial risk management objective and b) E2MAKEEARERBFK
policies (Continued) (&)
Market risk (Continued) 15 & B (#8)
Currency risk (Continued) B mE b ()
Sensitivity analysis BRED
The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of RMB, AEBTERMHARE BT
HK$ and USD. METE®RER -
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% TR AREBFRHEBEINE 5
(2016: 5%) increase and decrease in exchange rates of ZEREREGEEE Z2EX |
the relevant foreign currencies against the respective R TN®S%(ZE—NEE:
entity’s functional currency. 5% (2016: 5%) is the 5%) ZEBRE o AR RIS A E
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk B2 A B IE R INE R B R
internally to key management personnel and represents ﬁﬁ i & & 18 [E ¥ A B fE K nf
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible BERI A EEE 2T E - &
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis FY EONMEBERTBIAINE
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated FEZE ’H@‘IE— B IR 2R
monetary items, and adjusts their translation at the end of RIEE%(ZE—RNFE  5%)
the reporting period for a 5% (2016: 5%) change in foreign CERESEHABREBE . VXK
currency rates. A positive number below indicates an §|J TZIEHBLRNEERETE
increase in post-tax profit where the respective functional I g féi K& 5 AE B ON S B (B 5%
currencies of the reporting entity weaken 5% (2016: 5%) TE—REE 5% ERER
against the relevant foreign currencies. For a 5% (2016: 5%) T8 hn 7 &5 - 5 HEEETH ﬁ% f
strengthening of the respective functional currencies B HAEBEINE T E5% (=
against the relevant foreign currencies, there would be an NEE 5%) BEeg8HE Té &
equal and opposite impact on the profit, and the balances KEBEERARZEZE MK
below would be negative. ZERERA -
RMB HK$ usD
ARH BT EYH
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE—tf ZE-RE ZE-+tf ZZ—RF ZE-tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT AR®TR AR®TR AR¥Tn ARETR
(note (a)) (note (a)) (note (b)) (note (b))
(k@) (@) (M) (&)
Profit or (loss) m Ak (B E) (397) (373) = - 34 26
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial

risk management objective and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Notes:

(a) This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on bank
balances and cash denominated in RMB at the end of the reporting
period.

(b) This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on bank
balances and cash denominated in HK$ at the end of the reporting
period.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group is exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to bank balances
and cash (see note 21). No sensitivity analysis is presented
because the risk is considered insignificant.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group is also
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed
rate deposit with bank (see note 21) and fixed rate bank
borrowings (see note 25). No sensitivity analysis is
presented because the risk is considered insignificant.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 98%
(2016: 99%) of the total trade receivable as at 31
December 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has no concentration
of credit risk, as 0% (2016: 15%) and 26% (2016: 42%) of
the total trade receivables, which was due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when they fall due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group ensures that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash on demand to meet its liquidity requirement in the
short and longer term; this excludes the potential impact
of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be
predicted, such as natural disasters.

6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at
the end of the reporting period.

6.

o =N

(b)

eHEARETEEAERR KX
(#8)

e B0 1 R B (#8)
TRANAEE 2 FFITEZ R
BEZHBAOHBR &R
ENAEEBEFLEXNZRSR
FHYRESBRBEZRITR
REeREHE HMETES
MEEZINHBABEEER
HRER - RPEEMNERA
THREMNE - HHXRNAFER
AECARTHSBIOINZ2RY
REMEBREBL -

Total
undiscounted
cash flows due

on demand or Carrying
within one year amount
RAIFRBREDH
—FREER
EEREAS REE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFIT
At 31 December 2017 R-ZEB—+tHF+=-HA=+—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities {TE 2R A S
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M EMFIE 92,187 92,187
Amounts due to related parties FET R & 1B 1,346 1,346
93,533 93,533
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—X"E+ZHA=+—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities {4 ¢/ A&
Trade and other payables B 5 & H b FE IR 112,815 112,815
Amounts due to related parties JE 1 B8 i 5 8 660 660
Bank borrowings RITER 5,927 5,610
119,402 119,085
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(¢) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
current financial assets and current financial liabilities
recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
approximate their fair values due to the short maturities.

Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable of
the goods sold to customers, net of discounts allowed, sales
return, rebates and sales related taxes where applicable.

Information reported to the Executive Directors, being the chief
operating decision maker (the “CODM?”), for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on a mixture of product lines and geography. The
Directors have chosen to organise the Group around differences
in products. The segments are managed separately as each
operating segment offers different products which require
different production information to formulate different strategies.
No operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments are as follows:

o Hair-care products

o Skin-care products

o Other household and personal care products

Also, the CODM is provided with segment information

concerning segment revenue and result. Segment assets and
liabilities are not reported to the CODM regularly.

6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z -

—tFt-A=+—RILLFE

7. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 7. % X ZER 2 2 E £ @)
Segment revenue and results SEEXEARERB
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results UTRAEERATRE D FKA R
by reportable and operating segments. EEDHNT
Other household and
Hair-care products Skin-care products personal care products Total
HitRAR
BEER ERER BAEEER Eh
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-t% ZT—5F ZB-tfF ZTRF ZE-tf ZT-RF CZE-tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT AR%Tn ARETT AR%TR ARETR
Sales to external customers HETFIHEEP 233,067 215,638 5,197 13,276 25,951 35,315 264,215 264,229
Segment profit/{oss) SBEH/(EE) 21,200 30,571 645 2,430 (5,941) (8,489) 15,904 24,512
Changes in fair value less costs to - =9 EE R 4 BIE
sellin respect of biological HEEKAR
assets 2EEE = 29
Bank interest income ROTFEHA 379 406
Other income Hil A 8,647 23,512
Corporate and other unallocated KA it 2 L Z &
expenses Hipp X (5,204) (5,892)
Finance costs BBER (495) (1,473
Profit before taxation AR 19,231 41,004

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represent the profit (loss) from each segment
without allocation of changes in fair value less costs to sell in
respect of biological assets, bank interest income, recovery
from litigation claims, gain on sales of scrap materials,
government grants, write-back of trade and other payables, net

foreign exchange (losses) gains,

provision for litigation

recognised, central administration cost, directors’ emoluments
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Executive
Directors for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

LESEHE

?‘éxﬁa‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁt
I 5

%’i}ﬂzzﬁﬁ’]“%ﬂ%ﬁf

F WA 2% B U

BZJH%%EJJ BoHMEMBEKE
@/ (B 1R) F8
RRE

@l - B ¥
RERER

AR B RS At 2
AEBHOETHE -
ZBMN(ER) B
PEEVEEN QA EER

#8177l U8
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EENT
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Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Other segment information

Hair-care products

EEER

2017

2016

Skin-care products

EEER

2017

“B-tF ZF-RF ZB-tF

RMB’000

RMB’000

RMB’000

ARMTR ARBTT ARETR

2016
—E-R%

RMB'000
ARBETT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

7. EXRBERDIBER @

Total

o
A

2017

oy

2016

ZZ-RF ZB-tF ZE-RF

Hth 78 EHE
Other household and
personal care products Unallocated
HERAR
BAEEER KABMH
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tE ZE-R%F ZE-tF
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTR ARETR

ARMTR

RMB’000

RMB'000

ARETR ARBTRT ARETR

Amounts included in the
measure of segment
results

Additions to non-current
assets

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposals of
property, plant and
equipment

(Reversal of)/impairment
loss recognised in
respect of trade
receivables

Reversal of allowance
for inventories

Allowance for inventories

Obsolete inventories
written-off

SEHBERE
BE AR

FRBEEREN

nE BERRBHE

RENE RER
RENBX

EREHEUNA
(BE)/REER

FEREEHERD

FERERMR

BRTERE

10,974

14,887

(4,520)

1,059

1,287

8,470

396

1,979

(202)

1,016

860

249

338

(102)

247

78

612

24

122

(17)

75

463

1,247 204
1,692 2,65
= 65
(514) 324
= (24)
11 33
2,064 1170

242

160

970

12,467

17,159

34

(5,136)

112

3,370

1,669

11,898

1,455

2,425

(243)

1,427

2,493




Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC (country
of domicile) and Hong Kong.

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the goods delivered. The geographical location of the
non-current assets is based on the physical location of the
assets, in the case of property, plant and equipment.

7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

HERH

AEBREEBETIESPRERE G
EEZR)MERS -

EPFHMESRDBREINE @
NEBET FRBEEMMIEME
DREBEEERMAECE(NEY
X -BELKRE MEE -

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REMFEFHBA FRBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZEB—tF —_T-RFE ZEB-—+tHF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTRT AR®BTR AR¥KTET
PRC (country of domicile) &1 B (B #E B 5% ) 255,634 257,263 131,751 136,247
Hong Kong BB 4,395 4,813 652 990
Singapore o 635 505 - —
Thailand B 1,862 551 — —
Malaysia 55 3k P on 1,021 1,097 = —
Venezuela ZERIHmAL 668 — — —
Total 4t 264,215 264,229 132,403 137,237
Information about major customers FEXZERHA

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years NIBEEE AKREBBSEEE B

contributing over 10% of the Group’s revenue is as follows: 10% A EHEPAT
2017 2016
—®-tF C—T—XF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTRT ARETT
Customer A ZPA N/A? 28,889’

Revenue was derived from hair-care products and other household and
personal care products.

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of
the Group.

T2 WAKARNEEEREEMRAREAR
BERM-

E RS EBTEAREER L EREAR
10% LA £ ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

8. Other Income 4. HArg A
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFT
Bank interest income |RIT A B A 379 406
Gain on sales of scrap materials BB B = 959 598
Government grants (note a) BT B & (M sEa) 2,741 2,811
Net foreign exchange gains PE 5 s F 7R = 810
Recovery from litigation claims (note b) FRAARERE (M :Eb) - 18,815
Reversal of impairment loss recognised 2 5 K B th & W 5RIE HY
in respect of trade receivables EERBEBRZEE 5,136 —
Write-back of trade and other payables B RHEMEMAERZ
[o] #8 4,947 —
Write-back of payables for property, plant ~ EfT4¥ % - E L EZE 2
and equipment o] £ - 4,083
Others HAth - 478
14,162 28,001
Notes: B
(@) Included in the amount of government grants recognised during the year ended  (a) BE_Z—+tF+_A=+—R0 HEGEHFTHED
31 December 2017 of approximately RMB2,741,000 (2016: approximately SHENBARKE2741,000L (ZFE—RF: AR
RMB2,811,000) were received from the PRC government in respect of certain ¥2811,00070)  Z 2 EEPEBMAH AR E &
research projects, electronic shopping platform projects and export encourage fEIBEE  THFAEB ML OB &ED %
scheme, the relevant granting criteria for which have been fulfiled and were FIREME RS WREFERBAEMBA
immediately recognised as other income for both years.
(b) During the year ended 31 December 2016, claims against other parties in (o) BE-Z—XF+-A=+—BLEFER Y

respect of malicious falsehood by a media company and unsatisfactory
performance of plant and machineries by a supplier were settled and amounts
of approximately RMB18,646,000 and RMB169,000 were recovered by the
Group respectively.

— SRR A R A T R RO R R R AL A
REEEREHENBENEEREEETE B8
A AR 18,646,000 7T F1A K # 169,000 7T 5
Al AL EER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

9.

10.

Finance Costs

9. MKEH

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARET T
Imputed interest on non-interest bearing TIRIRRBEBERZ
loans from controlling shareholders HEFE = 1,473
Interest on bank borrowings IRITE XA B 495 —
495 1,473
Taxation 10. Fi18
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR®ET T
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) R ERERH
(EEmERD
— Current year —KEE 4 _
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNEH
— Over provision in prior years — L FEERERE - (679)
4 (579)
Deferred tax (note 24): EERIE (i 5E24) -
Current year —ARFEE — (2,031)
Income tax expense (credit) FTiS TR X (M) 4 (2,610
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

10. Taxation (Continued)

(@)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “PRC
EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the PRC EIT
Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

The PRC EIT Law allows enterprises to apply for the
certificates of “High and New Technology Enterprise”
(“HNTE”) which entitles the qualified companies to a
preferential income tax rate of 15%. Bawang (Guangzhou)
Co., Ltd. (“Bawang Guangzhou”), a PRC subsidiary of the
Group, was qualified as a HNTE in 2009 and the
qualification was renewed and valid until 2018. However,
Bawang Guangzhou did not have any assessable profits
subject to EIT for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years. No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 as the Group does
not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax for 2017 and 2016.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman lIslands and the BVI for the
current and previous years.

10. 18

(@

BETFRCERESRE(TDE
FrEf =z REEMSHREE
HAED  REBK BRI
X2 N\F-HA—HEA
25% o

FRMEMGRERTEES
EACE ks SR AOSE RS (=
EDEBE MESZEEND
ErUAZEI5%NEERB R
FLT(BMERRARTBLE
MR ZZEZNEERTAR
FRMCE TBAHRER
ZEBRERE_ZE—N\F-R
M HBHE2E_E—tFRER_F—
ANE+T-_AZ+—HIEFE-
FTEMNIEZEEMEZMAD
E¥FBHZERFEH -

TE—LEFERIE-RNFEZ
EBFESHZERDB G H
165%RAE-HE_ZT —+
FR_E-—ARF+ZA=+—
HIEFE AEEWLEEM
EEMEBEBEH C ERH &
F o FTAWEETIRB B FEH -

REFREHELRBELES
HR R R RB - REBEEER
AR R AR EEGRNRASEE R
RERZBEESNEMHRE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

10. Taxation (Continued) 10. B 18
Taxation for the years can be reconciled to the profit before FERRIEESASBRE Y HATER
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and HERWT -

other comprehensive income as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —TARF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR&ET T
Profit before taxation TSR & F 19,231 41,094
Tax calculated at the domestic income tax & 25 i A 15 54§ B 25%
rate of 25% (2016: 25%) B ZHIA
(ZZ —7"F : 25%) 4,809 10,274
Effect of different tax rates of entities REMAERERES 2
operating in other jurisdictions TRMEZ G E (1,709) (6,501)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TAMBER BB E
for tax purpose 1,516 1,534
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BEBRBRWA Z R E
purpose (413) (5,288)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR EER 2B
=4 9 603
Utilisation of other deductible temporary B H M I A0
differences not recognised REROEFHEER (3,022) (622)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AR AERZ
recognised MIEEE (1,186) —
Over provision in prior years LARTF S B RERT 12 - (6579)
Reversal of temporary differences recognised % [a] A 7] 4 & & & FT 15§
in prior years — (2,031)
Income tax expense (credit) I8 4 (2,610)
Details of deferred tax are set out in note 24. EER AR R M T4 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

11. Profit for the Year

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

11.

FRAHE

AT FE R ANE 2 MR/ (Gt A) T 3118
S

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBT T
Auditor’s remuneration % R B & 1,025 938
Allowance for inventories (included in cost of 77 & % (B %4 (5t A LA E 8
inventories recognised as an expense RERI 2 FEKAR)
above) 112 1,427
Cost of inventories recognised as MRABRAI ZHFERKA
an expense (note (a)) (Fft 7% (@) 136,902 137,699
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BEIRRETE
equipment 17,159 11,898
(Reversal of)/impairment loss recognised in ~ #&:2 & 5 & W FX I8 5 &
respect of trade receivables (B E)/BK (5,136) 2,425
Loss on disposals of property, plant and BEEYE WMENMEKED
equipment Bk 34 1,455
Net foreign exchange losses ME N 1R R 1,679 —
Provision for litigation (included in FINEHIRE H
administrative expenses) GtATTEHER) - 722
Research and development costs MRAR 2 HEXR
recognised as an expense 10,794 10,130
Reversal of allowance for inventories (included 17 & & {8 % 4% # 3]
in cost of inventories recognised as GtARE®mREREZ 2
an expense above) HFERAK) — (243)
Staff costs (note (b)) 8 T (BI3E (o)) 53,013 48,133
Obsolete inventories written-off (included BT EHE GFAMNR L
in cost of inventories recognised as BRERIZEERAK)
an expense above) 3,370 2,493

Notes:

(@

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense included depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and staff costs of approximately
RMB14,898,000 (2016: approximately RMB10,695,000) and RMB15,637,000
(2016: approximately RMB13,675,000) respectively. The amounts were also
included in the respective amounts disclosed above.

Staff costs included redundancy cost of approximately RMB377,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2017: Nil).

MiEE

BMRAAIZFERABEYE  BE RZE
EREBIRASD LB ARE14,8980007T (=
T—RF: HARA10,6950007T) &4 ARE
15,637,0007C (= F — X F : 49 A R % 13,675,000
T U ESEAHAEDRBEEN EHEBEEEP -

BE-Z-RFT-A=+—HLEFE BIRX
ABREEMEROARKEI700T(ZF —+
FiE)-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

12. Staff Costs 12. B TR AR
2017 2016
—E—+& —E—XF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) & TR A (BIEEE#HS) :
comprise:
Salaries, allowances and benefits e FZAREAN 50,886 45,558
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes i 1K 1& | &t 21 f 3% 2,127 2,198
Termination benefits BHIR 18 A - 377
53,013 48,133
13. Dividends 13. R &
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 HE-_ZT—+ttF+=ZA=+—8H1t
December 2017 (2016: Nil), nor has any dividend been FEVERMNSBREMBE(ZE

proposed since the end of the reporting period (2016: Nil).

—REE) AEHRHRRITESR

RERKRE(ZT—NE )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

14. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

14. BIRER|

ARRBEANRBEZERERAREER
MRBEATBURAE -

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR® T T
Earnings EZR
Earnings for the purpose of basic and LA IR B A % 5E & A
diluted earnings per share A E AT 19,227 43,704
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
000 '000
TR T
Number of shares B E B
Weighted average number of NEBREABEAEHH
ordinary shares for the purpose of EFHLBRHE
basic earnings per share 3,161,811 3,057,986
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: — #&/ZE T @AM £ -
Share options HA 445 499
Weighted average number of NEREBEREAE DN
ordinary shares for the purpose of oM 19 X m AR #
diluted earnings per share 3,162,256 3,058,485

The numerators used are the same as those detailed above for

both basic and diluted earnings per share.

BEREFELAFINEANNEES
B & A AR A AR R D ¥ o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

15. Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

Emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2016: Six)
directors and the chief executive were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Executive directors

15. EBERETETHAENE

BB AB(ZE—XE: X
BEERFETHRAEB ZH & W
T

g8ExE—_2—t#+=-A=+—H
L E

Independent non-executive directors

BITEE FHTES
Mr. CHEN
Zheng He
Mr. CHEN (Chief
Qiyuan Executive ~ Mr. WONG Dr. NGAI Wai Mr. CHEUNG
(Chairman) Officer) Sin Yung Fung Kin Wing  Mr. LI Bida Total
REBLE
B BOR £ £ (B
(X&) HTE) EER%E HEBREL REERE FTHEXLE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARMTR AR¥TR AR%TR AR¥TR AR%TR AR%ETR
(note a)
(MzEa)
Emoluments paid or ARAREMEL
receivableinrespect  ANESHER
of aperson’s services B X H EK M
as a director, whether ~ #{4&
of the Company or its
subsidiaries
Fees wne - - - 260 173 148 581
Emoluments paid or AARHEKE
receivable in respect ARMEE
of director’s other RHEEH
services in hEBRE
connection with the IRHEY
management of the o kA
affairs of the
Company and its
subsidiaries
Other emoluments Htviie
Salaries ¥4 RE - 125 1,038 = = = 1,163
Contrioutions to R R F G2
retirement benefits fitsx
scheme - 6 16 - - - 22
Total emoluments BitH& - 131 1,054 260 173 148 1,766
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

15. Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

Emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Executive directors

HTES

5. EFERFTETHRAENE

(%)

BE_Z—R"F+=-A=+—H
IEFE
Independent non-executive directors

FHTES

Mr. CHEN

Mr. CHEN  Zheng He (Chief

Qiyuan Executive Mr. WONG  Dr. NGAIWai  Mr. CHEUNG
(Chairman) Officer) Sin Yung Fung Kin Wing Mr. LI Bida Total
BREBTE
BRRIOR 20 (B
(£&) W1E) EBERAE BREEEL FRREEE FUELL A%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARE®Fr ARETRT AR®FR ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Emoluments paid or KAARENE
receivable in respect ARAMNEER
of aperson’s services  ERBZAH
as a director, whether WM ¢
of the Company or its
subsidiaries
Fees we — — — 257 171 171 599
Emoluments paid or AT REME
receivable in respect ARNEE
of director’s other RHEEH
services in fhEBRE
connection with the THRHHEY
management of the HE e
affairs of the
Company and its
subsidiaries
Other emoluments R0
Salaries F4 28 - 124 1,029 - - - 1,153
Contributions to BB E
retirement benefits #3R
scheme - 6 15 - - - 21
Total emoluments LiEe — 130 1,044 257 171 171 1,773

Note (a): Passed away on 22 November 2017.

There was no discretionary bonus provided to the Directors for

the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Mr. CHEN Zheng He is also the chief executive officer of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above included those
for services rendered by him as the chief executive.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the Directors waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments in the year ended 31

December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Miite: ZEER_T—LtF+—-A-+=H
it o

R-EBE—+FM_ZE—XRF+_-A8
=+ —HESEEHRHENDA -

REBEEEERRTERNIT
B LB FMEBREEES
FHTENRBGME -

BE-T L&+ -A=+-BL
TR AREREERATERMN
ERFAERELAME (T~
F ) -
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B T &

hfis®mHFMALH O (ZF—
NEHAM)AESE REFMRIN
L1 RE -FREM—R(ZF

16. Employees’ Emoluments 16.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
four (2016: Four) were Directors whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures in note 15 above. The emolument of

the one (2016: One) individual was as follows: —RNF D) &S A A
E3E N

2017 2016

—E—+tfF —E—REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBETFTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits Ha o EZBERER 166 165

Retirement benefits scheme contributions Rk 8 T 78 #1521 (&% 8 8

174 173

Their emoluments were all within nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB865,000 (2016: Equivalent to
approximately RMB857,000).

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals (including Directors and employees) or other
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office.

(ZF - F:
857,000) ©

REBEEZZE—+tFRZFT—F+
“A=+—RLEFEHBE AEH
TESNHE TFTAEERE®S
MAT(BREREERET)EME
E ERBEMNMASIRMEREER
B2 BV SKIERBER I (E o
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment

17. 9% - BERRE

Office

Immature

Leasehold Motor equipment Display Bearer bearer Construction
Buildings Machinery improvements  vehicles and others  furniture plants plants  in progress Total
REHE BAE THEAN
EE B BRXH BEBHIA REREML RBTREE LEMEY LEMEY ERIR @t
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTR ARETR ARKTT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETT AREBTR
cosT BA
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—~E—HA—H 5,494 118,244 144,777 11,346 22,920 937 47 256 72,97 376,992
Exchange realignment EHAE - - - 462 67 - - - - 529
Additions NE - 3 16 769 87 - - 150 544 1,569
Disposals e - (2,602 - 465 (2975) - Q) - - (6,044)
Write-off W - - (10,200) - - - - - - (10,200)
Transfer from construction BB EBERTE
in progress - 60 320 - 55 - - - (435) -
At31December 2016and M =T —RF
1 Jenuary 2017 tZA=-AR
—E—tF
—A—H 5,494 115,705 134,913 12,112 20,154 937 45 406 73,080 362,846
Exchange realignment R - - - (515) - - - - - (515)
Additions RE - 17 68 286 230 - - 126 11,740 12,467
Disposals He - - - 96) 282) - 2 - - (380)
Transfer from construction BB ERTE
in progress - - 45,100 - - - - - (45,100) -
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+F
+=-A=+-H 5,494 115,722 180,081 11,787 20,102 937 43 532 39,720 374,418
ACCUMULATED RHE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2016 RZZ-RE-fA-H 1,320 73,208 80,668 11,095 19,561 855 18 - 34,983 221,708
Exchange realignment EXIE - = - 397 42 - - - - 439
Depreciation provided for ~ FRH E&AE
the year 247 3,077 8,184 163 224 1 2 - - 11,898
Eliminated on disposals HE B Y - (1,812 - (428) 2,113) - - - - (4,353)
Write-off BE - . 4,083) - - - - - - (4,089
At 31 December 2016and A —F X%
1 January 2017 TZA=t-BR
ZE—+F
—A—8 1,567 74,473 84,769 11,227 17,7114 856 20 - 34,983 225,609
Exchange realignment ExHE - - - (411) - - - - - (411)
Depreciation provided for ~ F AT E & &
the year 247 2,567 13,749 258 336 - 2 - — 17,159
Eliminated on disposals | B 21 4 - - - 87) (254) - (1) - - (342)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+E
+-A=1+-H 1,814 77,040 98,518 10,987 17,796 856 21 - 34,983 242,015
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2017 RZB—+%
+=-A=+-H° 3,680 38,682 81,563 800 2,306 81 22 532 4,737 132,403
At 31 December 2016 WZE-RE
+-A=+-H° 3,927 41,232 50,144 885 2,440 81 25 406 38,097 137,237
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17.

18.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Buildings EE

Machinery 25

Leasehold improvements REAEHRNRE T H
Motor vehicles EHTA

Office equipment and others MRAERBREM
Display furniture RTEE

Bearer plants EEMEY

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress and immature bearer plants until it is substantially
completed and ready for its intended use. Upon completion and
commissioning for operation, depreciation will be provided at
the appropriate rates specified above.

As at 31 December 2016, buildings with carrying values of

approximately RMB3,927,000 (2017: Nil) were pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

Biological Assets

Biological assets represent the growing herbs in the cultivation
base located in the PRC.

17.

18

M BERRE @

FERERYE BELRREBHK
REBBEEBFRBKEERAT
FIEE A IR ERORFTE -

20 years 204
15 years 154
10 years 104
5-8 years 5-84F
5 years 54

2 years 2%
3-25 years 3-254F

ERTIRETKANEYEE T
RITE BEEEEEEELXT
WiEd Al fE MR - B H T MR
NEER 818 EXFr&E & &
FIIAGHIRITE -

RZE—RFEF+ZRAR=+—H"
AEBEEREODEEHOARE
3,927,000 T BEY (Z T — L F -
) ARIBITHE THRERE -

EUMEE

EMEERBMUNFTEKRENREE
HEpEBEanhEL-

2017 2016
ZEBE—tF —ZT-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥STn AR®TT
At 1 January Kn—H—H 457 426
Changes in fair value less costs to sell N BERIEEKAD
2Hias - 29
Plantation expenditure BEY T = 14 ~
Herbs harvested during the year F U A A B (457) 12 & E
Be
&
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H - 457 E E‘%
&l

—l
w
uirg
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18. Biological Assets (Continued) 18 £MEE @)
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Plantation expenditure comprises those costs that are directly
attributable to the cultivation of herbs including seeds, fertilisers,
pesticides, direct labour, operating lease charges on farmland
and other direct costs.

Consumable biological assets which only have one harvest in
each planting are classified as current asset. Bearer plants
providing multiple harvests over years are classified as non-
current asset.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 24 (2017: Nil)
hectares of growing herbs.

Biological assets are stated at fair value less costs to sell at the
end of the reporting period as estimated by an independent
appraiser using the net present value approach whereby
projected future net cash flows were discounted to provide a
current market value of the biological assets. The fair value
measurements of biological assets are categorised within Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers among any
levels of the fair value hierarchy for both years.

BEXHERIEERRBRBES
BEENONABERETF EX R%.
EEREAL EHANKEHEERNU
NEMERKA

BREEREE - RKRKZHEREE
EMEERBRARDEE - TFH
RHEZRAMK 2 EELREYERR
FRBEE -

R—ZE—-—RF+-_A=+—H8B"' XK
EBEEURNA(ZE—LF &)
TEEAPERE

REBMRNEMEENRIAREE
MBEERAETHE REEEA
B SRR AR IR B R ETT AT
B HRARKRFERSREETH
B At EZEMEENRTMS
BE-EMEEZAAEBEAER
ERFIRDABESTR - RWESF
B 2rBEFMRZELETHE
B o
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18. Biological Assets (Continued)

The following unobservable inputs were used in Level 3 fair
value measurements of the Group’s biological assets as at 31

December 2016:

18 £ EE @)

UWTAER - Z—X"NF+_A=+—
BERAYEEFIRAALBETE
ZAABRER

Unobservable inputs

THEEEHR

Range of unobservable inputs
(weighted average)

THBEEREE (NEFIIE)

Relations of unobservable inputs
to fair value

THBEEREAQIABEZAR

Growing herbs yield
— kg per hectare

TEtE 2 B B ZE UK
—BRETFR

Growing herbs price

BEZHEEER

Discount rate

EE

750-850 (769) per year

F 750-850 (769)

RMB31 per kg

FFr ARSI

11% per annum

FF11% (11%)

The discount rate used in the valuation of the biological assets
in the PRC at the end of the reporting period was based on the

market-determined pre-tax rate.

In estimating the fair value of the biological assets, the highest
and best use of the biological assets is their current use.

The higher the growing herbs yield,
the higher the fair value

BEZHPEERKBES
ARBESS

The higher the market price,
the higher the fair value

BazHPEEMEMS -
ARnEBEEES

The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value

BlEazsHPEETREYS -
AR BEBEEK

REBHMK ARTPEBENEY
BEMEERZITREZERTS

BEZHAANE-

B EEMEEZAAREBEMS
EMEEZRBERERERERE
ZIERE-
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18. Biological Assets (Continued) 18 £MEE @)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of biological EMEEBBHEEIMA L EEST
assets on recurring basis: =¥ :
2017 2016
—E -t —E—XF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETF T AR®ET T
At 1 January n—H—H 457 426
Additions NE = 14
Changes in fair value due to transformation MEEEEmMEL L
NREEEE — 29
Transfer to inventories EEFE (457) (12)
At 31 December R+-_A=+—~H - 457
The above changes in fair value for the year ended 31 Hz—ZEZ-XRNE+-_B=+—H JJ:
December 2016 recognised in profit or loss of approximately FE AR BREPERZARL
RMB29,000 (2017: Nil) was presented as a separate line item BEHHARE29000(== ti
on the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other Eom) - BRERESHREELEYD

comprehensive income and wholly attributable to the change in
unrealised gains or losses relating to biological assets held at
the end of the reporting period.

The Group is exposed to demand risks arising from
environmental and climatic changes. To mitigate these risks, the
Group does not rely on the self-supply of herbs, but also
sources herbs from a number of external suppliers.

EEMBE AT B BEZE
& o

AEBEERENRKRE(CTRD

mERER SEELRAR AEHE
TEEKRBEEROTELE  FRR

SR—EHEZIEBEEEINGE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

:%?T'A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ—%

19.

20.

Pt 5 R 2 B 5 (4R)

—tFt-A=+—RILLFE

Inventories 19 &
2017 2016
—E—tE —ZT—XKE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%®Tr
Raw materials JR# ¥ 15,255 13,057
Work-in-progress TR 2,335 929
Finished goods BUAK oA 16,409 15,354
Packing materials and consumable goods FME OB 13,582 12,487
47,581 41,827
During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was an REE_ZET—XRNF+_A=+—

increase in the net realisable value following a decrease in
seling expenses. As a result, a reversal of allowance for
inventories of approximately RMB243,000 (2017: Nil) had been
recognised and included in cost of sales in 2016.

BEtFEAR AR FERAHEE
X T®Mm LT Bl HARK
243,000 (=

T LEE m)2EE

KEEFRLOCHKERENAFE

BRERIEERARS -
Trade and Other Receivables H th fE UL T8
2017 2016
—B—-tF —ZE—KF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®STn AR®TT
Trade receivables B 5 ERGRIE 48,321 56,288
Less: allowance for impairment of trade B B S WG IE R B
receivables (6,810) (11,946)
41,511 44,342
Prepayment for purchase of raw materials & 5 R ¥ £ T8 518 1,628 1,516
Short-term prepaid advertising fee RESEESER 392 212
Litigation costs receivable (note 34 (a)) FAEHE 1451 %18 (B 7£34(a)) - 16,101
Other receivables H A B 50 1,927 3,413
45,458 65,584
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20. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 20.

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to
its trade customers.

(a) The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net
of allowance for impairment of trade receivables presented

B 5 N H i EWRIER @

AEEAHFESEFTFHEESR
/B0EI0K °

(@) REEZBTKRYRKAER
B 252 MEREE 5 - IR

based on the invoice date, which approximates the HRERBRBMER D TW
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the T
reporting period.
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T T
Less than 3 months L R31E A 29,920 23,952
More than 3 months but less than ZR3EAELR
6 months 61E A 10,438 11,203
More than 6 months but less than ZR6E AR
12 months 121 A 1,153 2249
More than 12 months Z R 121E8 A - 6,938
41,511 44,342
(b) The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net (b) REINHBZ7MBEHEZE
of impairment, presented based on the due date at the 55 FEU IR 2 HEI KA R
end of the reporting period: ST
2017 2016
—E -t —E—XF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETF T AR T T
Neither past due nor impaired Bl ER 25,284 26,380
Less than 3 months past due B H DB E A 15,323 14,973
More than 3 months but less than 6 months %1 i3 = 61 A
past due 904 1,797
More than 6 months but less than mHie=121E A
12 months past due - 290
More than 12 months past due B HZ 1218 A - 902
16,227 17,962
41,511 44,342
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20. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 20. E 5 & H i fE W FIE (@)
(b) (Continued) (b) (i)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate N 4 B ORI E B FE UK R IE B
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no RBEZ2RP BEOBTE
recent history of default. B BT RS % o
Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are REFREAR "EEHE B8 H
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately BEELHRERECE SRR
RMB20,163,000 (2016: RMB17,962,000) which are past HIEESKEEBEEBEN AR K
due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group 20,163,000 ZZF —<"F : AR
has not provided for impairment loss. Receivables that #17,962,000) ° %1 Hf (B £ 5 B
were past due but not impaired relate to a number of WEKRRIBEEETEBIZERE
independent customers that have a good track record B ZERFPHEAEBRNK S
with the Group. Based on past experience, the EHRREF AR ERAEZELE
management believes that no impairment allowance is BAREL BZEERTDER
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not A LA Z B m - AR IR A&
been a significant change in credit quality and the B EERENEEETIREE
balances are still considered to be fully recoverable. The BIEH BERE ANEEHI&E
Group does not hold any collateral over the trade and L S pE W N E b fE IR S IR
other receivables. BEME TR -
(c) Movement in the allowance for impairment for trade (c) B 5 E U 3% 18 &0 8 B B F&
receivables: 2E:
2017 2016
—E—-tHF _—T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®EF T AR® T T
At 1 January n—H—H 11,946 9,621
Impairment loss/(reversed) recognised ERERZBEEK/
(8m@) (5,136) 2,425
At 31 December R+Z—H=+—H 6,810 11,946

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s trade receivables of
approximately RMB6,810,000 (2016: RMB11,946,000)
were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to customers that
were in financial difficulties and the management assessed
that full amount of these receivables is unlikely to be
recovered. Consequently full provision for these doubtful
debts was recognised. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

R_ZE—+tF+ A=+
— B AEBEHARKE
6,810,000(=F —RF : AR¥
11,946,000) B & 5) F& W 5 I8 4
EREREETRERK - Z
EHHREFERNBRENERR AR
FlRaAMBERESEE mMEEEE
AR BT 2 B O H E U
HE -ARAEBEHZER
P28 BE T8I &
MZEERFTBEEMERRD -
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21. Pledged Bank Deposits/Deposit with Bank/ 21 K 4R T2 /4R 1T 17 =X/
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Bank Balances and Cash

Pledged bank deposits

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. As at 31
December 2016, deposits amounting to approximately
RMB10,000 (2017: Nil) had been pledged to secure bank
borrowings and were therefore classified as current assets.

The pledged deposits carry fixed interest rate of 1.10% per
annum during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Deposit with bank

As at 31 December 2017, deposit with bank of
RMB20,000,000, with maturity in May 2018 (2016:
RMB20,000,000, with maturity in May 2017), carries interest at
fixed rate of 1.75% (2016: 1.75%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash

As at 31 December 2017, cash at bank carries interest at
floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates of 0.001% to
0.60% (2016: 0.001% to 1%) per annum.

RITHESRRES

EHRITHER

BHETHERESEAESRITH
BREREE BEHREERETH—
B-BE_T—R"F+-_A=1+—
BIIERERARTESRITNE
HIE A R#10,000( - —+ 4 :
E)RMEE D ABRBEE -

B IRITEFRE T F R H1.10%
BE_T-R"EA_FT—LtH+
A=+—H1t

BITEM

R-FE—+F+=-A=+—H" 4§
1T E R A R 820,000,000 ( = F — <
F: AR #20,000,000 £ ZF—+
FRANPHBR-_ZE—NER A
B BEEFMEE175%(ZF — X
F:1.75%) o

BITEERA®

NZZEE—+E+_A=+—H" R
TRESEREBEHBETHERZTHFEF
L0.001%Z2060%( = T — X F:
0.001%E1%) T & FI & -
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22. Trade and Other Payables 2. B REMENARIE

2017 2016

—E—tF ZT—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AR%®Tr

Trade payables B 5 R 50R 30,527 33,646

Receipt in advance T8 W 5K I8 16,236 14,306
Payable for acquisition of property, JENWE - BB MERE

plant and equipment BEEH 1,802 4,287

Promotion fee payables FEfHHEE B 13,838 22,129

Accrued payroll ERTE 4,429 3,768

Provision of sales returns 55 IR A B 16,746 14,821

Non-income tax payables FEFTIS T E 1 3k 9,016 9,157

Deposits received FARES 5,993 5,778

Other payables and accruals HtENRERERER 18,852 19,229

117,439 127,121

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented

REZZAHH B2 2B HEN

based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: HKIENE2HMABKRZERBE SO
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —EF-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEFTT
Within 1 month or on demand 1@ AR Bk iz B AEE 23,663 25,540
After 1 month but within 3 months 118 B & 1B 31E A R B 5 6,864 8,106
30,527 33,646

The average credit period on purchases is 30 to 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

BHEtEEA THEEBRNTNI0ED
B REEAEREN YRR EE
REREMBERNRBARKESR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ—%

23.

24.

Pt 5 R 2 B 5 (4R)

—tFt-A=+—RLLFE

Provisions 23. TR E1E
Provision for litigation
RAIRER
2017 2016
—E2-tF ZT—KF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTFRT ARETT
At 1 January R—H—H 2,503 3,826
Provision recognised FTIRERAER - 722
Payment made B X 3KIE (2,165) (2,045)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H 338 2503
Provision for litigation is made based on management best MM EFE4FTH - FFAGTIREAEZER
estimates and judgement, as described in note 4. Details of the EIEE R MAE - SRR
litigations are set out in note 34. B MzE34 -

Deferred Tax 24, IEIEHIE
The following is the deferred tax liability recognised and FTEELEHREAEFALNAIFE
movements thereon during the current and prior years: R
Undistributed
profits of PRC
subsidiary
W B A R
R 7 B F
RMB’'000
AREFTT
At 1 January 2016 RZZTE—R"F—H—H 2,031
Credit to profit or loss SRR Bk 18 2K (2,031)

At 31 December 2016, 1 January 2017 and
31 December 2017

}5_/\\\—7 /\ﬂf—f— H + El N
—E—tF-A—HBRK
—ET—+tF+ZHA=+—H —
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24. Deferred Tax (Continued) 24. IIE 3k 54 18 (@)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has unused estimated tax
losses of approximately RMB277,795,000 (2016:
RMB719,596,000) and RMB33,434,000 (2016:
RMB33,358,000) for certain subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong
Kong respectively. The tax losses incurred by the subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC will expire in five years from the year in
which the loss originated, while the ones incurred by the
subsidiaries in Hong Kong will not expire under current tax
legislation in Hong Kong. Certain tax losses of approximately
RMB433,781,000 expired during the year ended 31 December
2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of approximately RMB404,669,000 (2016:
RMB424,810,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Pursuant to the
Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangements, the investor
established in Hong Kong which the beneficial owner is holding
not less than 25% of the equity interests of its PRC subsidiaries
can enjoy a reduced withholding tax rate of 5% on the dividend
received from its PRC subsidiaries. Deferred taxation has been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to undistributed profits of
the PRC subsidiaries in prior years amounted to approximately
RMB2,031,000. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Directors considered that the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, deferred tax liabilities of approximately
RMB2,031,000 were reversed. As at 31 December 2017, no
deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in respect of the
temporary differences of approximately RMB17,000 (2016: Nil)
associated with undistributed earnings of the PRC subsidiaries.

R-ZE—+E+-_A=+—0 K
EEFRTRPBEEEEETHEA
Gl A D ROk = sl
N R ¥277,795000( = & — N F
E: AR #719,506,000) f1 A R #
33,434,000 ZFE—~NFE: AR
33,358,000) ° H A - R B A 37 89
BB ARIMES BB EER KA
¥ EBERERZAFTFANEEH
MABBSHNHB AR EENTREE
BTEeREEBRITOBB EMMm
J& o 34 A R 433,781,000 49
REEEEE T —+tF+_-_A=
+—HLEFEEE®R -

R—ZEBE—+FE+-_A=+—0" K
EETMENEREEENAAR
¥ 404,669,000 — T — N FEF: A
R #424,810,000) o I £ (F 7] (& A] 30
BERMEZEMBERCRELEREE
E AABEAEEERE GF A
HESHAEMER ML =R HE
}Eﬁo

BEFEAREANBEREBE B
TN NF—A—HBHE HPHT
RNAEl RS R ED AR
BEEMBSH KEPEEERK
ZH O BREERBBRLIHEDT
DPRERBE T RAIB%ERNE R
EEAARKRBEFRH FRAAEW
BEZHESRMFEBINFEK - ELEFTE
REBUEZEFRRBE_T— X F
+ A=+ —HHNEAUBEHRERF
HUAFEFEEEANEASENIAR
#2,031,000/L e AR B EERASE
B AR ELE P EREERER
BEE meBAERMEEREERTE
RHOARRTGRED  thitR =T —
+tF+_A=+—"BBEFEHAR
¥ 2,031,000 7T B IR JE FT 15 R B [ o
RZE—+F+_A=Z+—HIF
E W EREFETRAARD KA
FEB2ERELHARK17,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ—%
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25. Bank Borrowings

25. IRITBE K

2017 2016

—E-tF ZZE—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFT
Secured bank borrowings (note a) ERIBTEZR (Mia) - 5,610
Carrying amount repayable (based on scheduled repayment ANBEE(RBEERHERTHTE

dates set out in the loan agreements): EBIHEHE)

Within one year —F A - 5,610

Notes:

(@

As at 31 December 2016, bank borrowings with carrying amounts of
approximately RMB5,600,000 (2017: Nil) bore interest at fixed rate and due
within one year. The fixed rate borrowing carried interest rates at 5.66% per
annum during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, bank borrowings with carrying amounts of
approximately RMB10,000 (2017: Nil) bore interest at fixed rate and due within
one year. The fixed rate borrowing carried interest rates at 4.35% per annum
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The Group’s bank borrowings at 31 December 2016 were secured or
guaranteed by the followings:

As at 31 December 2016, a borrowing of the Group with outstanding balance
of approximately RMB5,600,000 was guaranteed by Mr. Chen Qiyuan and a
related party in which the party was wholly owned by the Controlling
Shareholders and was secured by the property of a subsidiary as set out in
note 17.

As at 31 December 2016, a borrowing of the Group with outstanding balance
of approximately RMB10,000 was secured by the Group’s pledged bank
deposits as set out in note 21.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has available unutilised bank loan
facilities of approximately RMB80,000,000 (2016: RMB4,400,000).

HE-_Z-X"F+ZA=+—B1t &
454 ARS5600000T(=F—+4F
B E)NRITERFEREENE - WE

—FRIH-BE_FT-REFRZF—L
Fr-A=t+t—HLLFE BENEMER

FH*EAB566% °

BHE-ZT—XAF+ZA=+—HB1t @A
SHEOARE1000L(ZE—+FE:
EINRTERFEABEEME W E—
FRNEB - HEZT-—R"EL=ZFT—tF
+ZA=+—ALEE BEAEERF
F=E £4.35% °

AEBENBERBEE-_T-—RF+_A=1F
—HIEHRATHAER:

HE-_T—AF+-ZA=+—H81Lt K&
B £ 45 A 4 A R 5,600,000 7T F B RRUR
EEREBBAER ZHABRERERERES
WA WM FE17TFRK B T
e

BE-Z-RF+-A=1+—HiI X%
B £ 45 SR IE 49 A R #10,000 7T #9 & 5K el B
R R A S BIRTTFRFTIELR -

RERBAR  REEBREAHRITERE
€ #) AR #80,000,0007C (=& — N4
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26. Share Capital and Reserves

26. IR K f# 1

(@) Share capital (a) B&&E
Number of
shares
gyl s g=!
’000 RMB’000
T AR T T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 BB IT01 2 EEm
each
Authorised: JATE
At 1 January 2016, 31 WZE—XRFE—H—8" 10,000,000 880,500
December 2016, —E-XRF+=A
1 January 2017 and 31 =—+t—B8 ZE—+tF—HA—H
December 2017 rFE—E—+F+-_A=+—H
Issued and fully paid ordinary 2 21T &40 2 -
shares:
At 1 January 2016 R-E—RNF— 2,911,811 256,705
Issue of shares by way of LA R 7 N ETRE 250,000 21,173
placing (note i) (B =X
At 31 December 2016, 1 RZZE—RF 3,161,811 277,878
January 2017 and 31 +=—A=+—8"
December 2017 = N e =D
—E—+F+=HA=+—H
Note: &% -
(i) Issue of shares by private placement under general mandate ) —REERAETEHRMARERE

On 11 May 2016, arrangements were made for a private placement to
independent private investors of 250,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each in
the Company, at a price of HK$0.31 per share representing a discount
of approximately 19.48% to the closing market price of the Company’s
shares on 11 May 2016.

Pursuant to subscription agreements of the same date, six subscribers
subscribed for 250,000,000 new shares of HK$0.1 each in the
Company at a price of HK$0.31 per share. The proceeds were used for
repayment of the existing shareholders’ loans and to provide additional
working capital for the Group. These new shares were issued under the
general mandate granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 29 May 2015 and rank pari passu with other
shares in issue in all respects.

ZE—ARFRAT B AXR2FMA
AAREEREEEROAIBEN
250,000,000 1% A% 2 + i & B 1% &
0318 EEEEEREAAR
ZE_E-RERAT—BKWE
T2 4719.48% ©

REIBAER ARG R - BN
REHENEROIN LB EHERLRR
B 7 m & A0.17 ¥ #9250,000,000
B 3T AR o BR R M A B AR 3 KR
EHERTMAELEEES - BLR
E_Z-—HFEFREA-_+tNAEBRRAE
FRELREST —MEEEGETE
THFRRNEMREES FAEZA
FEm R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

26. Share Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account of the
Company is governed by the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The funds in the
share premium are distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Pursuant to applicable statutory provisions of the
Cayman lIslands, the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to the shareholders as at 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion of the
grant date fair value of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Company that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 3.

PRC statutory reserves

PRC statutory reserves are established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the PRC
subsidiary of the Group, Bawang Guangzhou.
Transfers to the reserves are approved by the
directors of Bawang Guangzhou.

Bawang Guangzhou and Bawang (China) Beverage
Co., Ltd, which are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in the PRC, are required to transfer at
least 10% of their net profit (after offsetting prior year
losses), as determined under the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to statutory general reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital under the PRC Company Law and
the articles of association of the entity. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before distribution of
dividends to the equity shareholder.

26. R A K f#1E @)
(b) REMBHERASE

0

(ii)

(iii)

Bz %@ R

ARRREA G EORERAR
FMERBSEREEEER)
FTE - FRIFEBERZIR
RS H H#E - A7
B NEEAEEBSI
HImER  SAARFD
FEBRANGERKRDIK

AL e

REFREHSEMANEE
B BE_T—+tF+
“A=+—HB1tr 2AEX
BRI AR DA
BR(ZFE—RFE: 8-

BEaEMm

BT ARBIREENBERE
RITEROEBG  $SERRE
TEHH AR EBERRMN
AESM 0 3T AY B & AT BUR
RENHEHER -

Bk TE & R
REDEERBETIRIEB R
B AR Bl K2 AR A DA e AN SR
ENrENELARELRE
Y AR BIE R - B
WFBEEBTIEMNES
gHE -

FITEMNEBEHE IR
el VA OB N = T
¥ HABREBTHEZR
Bl K2 3R ) - 5 B H R A &
D10% B 3 m F (R 8 A
FFEEMNEEBE)E—KR
ETEHE EEHHELES
EEFBRRQRERZER
MARERBRENZIME
KNE)50% & 1F - B =%
FEEARMBZZEREAD
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

26. Share Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii) PRC statutory reserves (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Statutory general reserve can be used to make good
prior years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into
share capital by issuing new shares to equity
shareholders proportionate to their existing
percentage of equity interests provided that the
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Merger reserve

On 20 December 2007, Bawang International Group
Holding (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired all the equity interest of
Bawang Guangzhou amounting to USD12,500,000,
which was previously held by a company owned by
the Controling Shareholders of the Group, at a
consideration of the same amount. Accordingly, the
share capital of Bawang Guangzhou was eliminated
and a merger reserve arose due to foreign exchange
differences.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the operations outside the PRC into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB).

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the deemed
contribution by the Controlling Shareholders in the
form of non-interest bearing loans to a subsidiary as
detailed in note 32(c). The amounts are estimated by
discounting the nominal value of the non-interest
bearing loans to the subsidiary at an effective interest
rate.

26. I AN X 5% 18 @)

(b) ki 1 & & A& (1)
(i) PEETE W (8)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

—ROKE W B 7] B 1F
NEFENEBEERIE)
A EBERERITA A
MR A N REE DL AR
FERTHB - LS BB
BEBSRA HETH
BEITRONEHRIBIRN
A& ARE25% °

& O Gk iR
R_EELF+=-_A=+
H AQRa2&EWE R
FITEBREEER(EHS)
BRAFIARSERUKE
% 7£12,500,000H) 8 £ /&
M 2 Z0 4 2= (2 B A AR
BREEBN —RQAHF
F)e Bk EEMMK
N S IS B AV B
ERWELAHEMG-

BE R % 0

e EERERE RS
SN 2 B A R (BDA
RE)MELENZEHER
EH -

H fth 6
HibH B RETERERE
5 70 P RE32(c) P At 2 Y /B8
RAMREERMELEZ
BRTE - ZBEANE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

27. LXanfE,..% EXURGBHE

27. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions LEEs

(a) Pre-IPO share option scheme

The Directors approved a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
on 10 December 2008. On 8 June 2009, the Company
conditionally granted certain Pre-IPO share options to the
Directors, senior management and employees under this
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The exercise of these
share options would entitle two of the Company’s
Directors to subscribe for an aggregate of 4,200,000
shares of the Company, and forty of senior management
and employees for an aggregate of 10,332,000 shares.
According to the grant letters signed by the Company and
the beneficial individuals, the exercise price of each share
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is either at par
value of HK$0.1 (four people under this tranche including
two the then directors), or at HK$1.19, representing a
50% discount to the offer price of HK$2.38 under the
global offering (thirty-eight people under this tranche).
Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme has a vesting period of one to five years,
commencing from the listing date and the options are
exercisable until 8 June 2019.

(a)

EriERRERS

B &

EEenN 22 N\F+=ZA+
H Eﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬁ%k
Tg§+§U°EAf§7jl¢/\ﬂ/\
H XRRBHKREHLBEREE X
Aﬁ%%m%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%
CTEREEENEREER
TETEBRARESAIER
%°ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%$“
AMBEERBEARA A& H
4,200,000 f% - BA &40% = 2&
kgfifﬂ{@g\%\ﬁ§$
& #£10,332,000 i% Hy #E ﬂ *E
BARAAEGEZE AR
BPEHG BRXRAREEAE
IRHEFEIE T ERRMDITE
BAREM®MEHIT01UATLL
AR BEMEBES)IOBET
119 B2 BEETHERE
78 J02.38 9T :#50% (38 A £ It
) - BEBEBERXAREENBR
BEEBRENEHBRENS
BH AR ETMHBRT —F=
hFE MEBREVKAEAR-E
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27. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions

27. L/{HHE,. EX RGO AE

(Continued) B Z @
(@) Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued) (a) BROFRERMARERD
(#])
Details of specific categories of Pre-IPO Share Options BRAHEENBRETS
Scheme are as follows: ERUNE
Number of Contractual
Date of grant instruments Vesting period life of options
BFHS BREHE FEYE BRESKH
Options granted to
directors 8 June 2009 1,260,000 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
RyEEmEReE —ZTEEhEFENANA ZEENFELAZABFH—F +4F
8 June 2009 735,000 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZEEAFRANAR ZETNFEA=HBEMF +4F
8 June 2009 735,000 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZZEZAFEXRANE —EENFLAZHRBHZ=F T+
8 June 2009 735,000 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZTEhEFESNANA ZTEENFEAZHBFEEF +4F
8 June 2009 735,000 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZEEAFRANAR ZETNFEA=ZHEBHAF +4F
Options granted to
employees 8 June 2009 1,669,920 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
BT 5 RE —ZTEEhEFENANA ZEENFELAZABFH—F +4F
8 June 2009 1,868,160 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZEEAFRANAR ZETNFEA=HBEMF +4F
8 June 2009 2,066,400 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZZEZAFEXRANE —EENFLAZHBHZ=ZF T+
8 June 2009 2,264,640 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—TEEhFENANA ZTEENFEAZHBFEEF +4F
8 June 2009 2,462,880 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZEEAFRANAR ZETNFEA=ZHEBHAF +4F
Total share options
granted 14,532,000
RTBREERK
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

27. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions 27. U EEEIURN AR

(Continued) BHAR S @)

(b) The following table disclosed the movements of the b) TEEEHZ-_ZT—+FN—
Company’s share options held by Directors and T—RNF+_A=+—HItHF
employees for the years ended 31 December 2017 and EEEhEEEEREZE
2016: B :

Number of share options

BREHE

Outstanding at 1 January

2016, 31 December 2016,

1 January 2017 and

Option type 31 December 2017
R-E—-—XR"F—-HA—H8"

—EB-R"E+=ZA=+-8H"

—E2—+tH&—-HA—-HEK

—E-t¥+=ZA=+-—H

BREER i R AT
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme ENNGE: ]
R e 1,654,000

Exercisable at the end of the reporting period % 2R EIR Al 1T

H) 5 A 1,654,000
Weighted average exercise price MEFHITEE HK$0.77
The options outstanding at 31 December 2017 had a R-_EBE—ttF+ A =+—
weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.43 years B - l"] AT 0 B A A /O 0 *é IF
(2016: 2.43 years). BFEIBE N AE1.43F (=
NEFE 2.43%F) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ ==

28. Statement of Financial Position of the

—tFt-A=+—RILLFE

28. 7K 1 B BF # ik L R

Company
2017 2016
—E—+t5 —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wiz AR®Tx AREF T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries RIELETH B R AW
& = -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UL BT /B A B FR IR a 1,710 3,653
1,710 3,653
Current assets RBEE
Other receivable B R 298 16,417
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG b 13,579 -
Bank balances and cash RTEFERES 2,939 399
16,816 16,816
Current liability REBEE
Other payables B fE S 5/ I8 4,085 3,915
Net current assets RBEEFE 12,731 12,901
Net assets BEEFE 14,441 16,554
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital A% X 277,878 277,878
Reserves & C (263,437) (261,324)
Total equity EREEE 14,441 16,554
Notes: B EE
() The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and not expected to be (a) ZpEeEEEF EHAX+-_EARN
recoverable within the next twelve months. TglkE -
(b) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. (o) ZREEER R WIRERKEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

28. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©

Movements in the reserves during the years are as follows:

28. N1 B B 7 AR R 3| @)

BeE - (%)

© REFREHBEROT

Share Capital Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
L BEARGHE RS B f “wHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARE T AREF T
(note 26 (b)) (note 26 (b)) (note 26 (b))
(Bt 3£ 26(0)) (I 7% 26(0)) (Pt £ 26(0))
At 1 January 2016 RIZZT—RF
—HA—H 1,356,369 2,814 (110,499) (1,467,674) (218,990)
Total comprehensive expense 4 A 2 [ B & 42 48
for the year — — (46) (86,569) (86,615)
Issue of shares by way of LA T R BEITIRE
placing (note 26(a)) (M 5% 26(a)) 44,462 - - - 44,462
Share issue expenses B = 21T B A (181) — - - (181)
At 31 December 2016 and RIZZE—RF
1 January 2017 +=—A=+—8
k=T —t4F
—A—8 1,400,650 2,814 (110,545) (1,554,243) (261,324)
Total comprehensive expense 4 X 2 [ & A 4258
for the year — — 48 (2,161) (2,113)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F
+-_A=+—8H 1,400,650 2,814 (110,497) (1,556,404) (263,437)
29. Lease Commitments 29. HH R IE
The Group as lessee XEEESEERBA
2017 2016
—EB—-+tfF ZZT—XF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%®Tr
Minimum lease payments paid under RELEHNERZ
operating leases during the year: HIEEEHRE
Production premises HESM 9,592 6,984
Office premises LN AT 1,004 615
10,596 7,599
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

29. Lease Commitments (Continued)

30.

The Group as lessee (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

29. M &AL @)

FREFESEEA G

RERBPR NEBE A HEDL
EHENZARKERSALZDHE
ST

2017 2016
—B—tF C—ZZE—KRF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TE

Within one year —FUR 8,681 6,461
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF

(BREEEMEEN) 16,677 10,380

Over five years HEFMUE 465 495

25,823 17,336

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its production premises and office. Leases
are negotiated for average terms ranging from 1 to 30 years
(2016: 1 to 30 years). Rentals are fixed over the terms of
respective leases.

Capital Commitments

@EESREAEMLNEMA
EEBRERRDDHROBERE -
BEEHE 2 RARNF - FE=
+E(CE-AFE: —FE=T
) e ERBOPNETTE -

30. EAREE

2017 2016
—E—t%F —F-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETE

Capital expenditure in respect of the REMBRE TR E
acquisition of property, plant and BEME BELIEN

equipment contracted but not provided in & N K &
the consolidated financial statements

2,731 2,406
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

31. Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions

(@) The PRC

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme”)
organised by the local authority whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
Scheme based on certain percentages of the eligible
employee’s salaries. The local government authority is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to

the retired employees.

(b) Hong Kong

The Group also maintains the MPF Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong in accordance with
the requirements of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and related regulations. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, of
which the contribution was matched by employees and

subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per employee.

The Group has no other obligations for payment of retirement
and other post-retirement benefits of employees other than the

contribution described above.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of approximately
RMB2,127,000 (2016: RMB2,198,000) represents contributions
payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the

rules of the plans.

31. BRARE R T S K

(a)

(b)

o B K 0 I

RETFTEBESEHER PE
MEARZEMPEBRE
BT # 48 4R 2 TE B BRI
1& M &T 8 (Tax a1 &11) - B R
BRAAIAKERIEZ—FAS
Lo 1A &% 5t 8 5K - B BT
BEREXNERKEENEE
BIRE -

FEHE

REBERBIMEREREE(RIE
8 AR R RARE
AEENSHBERAKRENE
BREERYBREEFE - RTE
TR CEERAEHAME
ENH BAXEAENZES
A - AKEZHEBIEZ5%
A B - B8 THOHK
FRAETT1,500 °

AEEBRT RS WEE
fEBAE TN RIKRHEMENK
‘EF o

BEaXP2RAIHARE
2,127,000 ZZFE —~FE: AR
2,198,000) - BN A& EptZ E5r &%l
EH—FEBADLLERZHR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

32. Related Party Transactions

(a) Related party balances

The following balances were outstanding at the end of the

reporting period:

N.EBEIRS

(a) RBFERE
2R R E AN 2 & ERan

Amounts due from/(to)
related parties

W/ (15) BB 5 SR 1E
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTn AR®TT
Trade related ¥ 5 1HE
Guangzhou Friend’s Group Information BMNHRRERE R
Technology Company Limited (‘Guangzhou B R 2 A
Friend’s Group”) (note i) (TEMBEE]) (5D — 48
Non-trade related FE 5
Guangzhou Bawang International Hotel Co., &M 8 £ B R A8 5
Ltd. (“Guangzhou Bawang International”) BEAR(EMNEHEL
(note i) B JE 1) (B 5T 87 -
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd. EMEB LA BRRA R
(“Guangzhou Bawang”) (note iii) (TEMEEL) (M Eii) 6,860 8,027
6,947 8,075
Non-trade related FE S HEA
Guangzhou Bawang International (note i) /& /M 5 T8 & (Bt 5% ii) - (54)
Trade related 51
Guangzhou Chenming Paper Products J& N T = AR 4R
Company Limited (“Guangzhou BRRABI(TEMEHE]D
Chenming”) (note iv) (B 3Eiv) (1,264) (310)
Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging Materials &M T E R B =M
Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Qiancai”) (note iv) BRAR(TEMBR]
(Bt EEiv) (81) (295)
Guangzhou Xiaoxiao Supply Chain &N /)N /N i g B
Management Co. Ltd (“Guangzhou BRAB(EMNND
Xiaoxiao™) (note V) (B £Ev) ) (1)
(1,346) (660)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

32. Related Party Transactions

(a) Related party balances (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Guangzhou Friend’s Group was under the control of the close family
members of the Controlling Shareholders of the Company. The credit
term granted to Guangzhou Friend’s Group is 15 days. The balance
was unsecured and interest-free.

Guangzhou Bawang International was effectively 100% owned by the
Controlling Shareholders of the Company. The balance with Guangzhou
Bawang International mainly represented meeting and catering services
payable. The balance was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Guangzhou Bawang was effectively 100% owned by the Controlling
Shareholders of the Company. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
balance due from (to) Guangzhou Bawang mainly represented
prepayment of rental expenses. The balance was unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

Guangzhou Chenming and Guangzhou Qiancai were under the control
of the close family members of the Controlling Shareholders of the
Company. The credit term granted by Guangzhou Chenming and
Guangzhou Qiancai is 30 days, based on the invoice date. As at 31
December 2017 and 2016, the amounts due to Guangzhou Chenming
and Guangzhou Qiancai were unsecured, interest-free and repayable
within 30 days, based on the invoice date.

Guangzhou Xiaoxiao was under the control of the Controlling
Shareholders of the Company. The credit term granted by Guangzhou
Xiaoxiao is cash on delivery. The balance was unsecured and interest-
free.

. BEIRS @

(a) FABESERE (W)
GER

[0} &N 3R R B R AN 1 B 2 AR AR R SR BE
KEEEREH - ZFEMBREN
EAHR BI5K - X358 A EIKA

RE e

(i) EMBEBEBEAEEERRKRE
100% 6 MR - EMBIEED
HAREHREZREN
BE -FHEEHEER 2RURK

TR -

(iii BINE T B AR B 2R E100%
BERER -N_T—tEM=
ANFE+ZA=+—8 BEMNEETH
MABZEBEZ AEMNERAMENSA
o AHEHEEF REUKRE

vy BENEAMEMERZHEARADR
TRBRREEBIORER B
SlE e AEMBIAMBEMNBERE T
MEEHARRHAMIOA -HRZF
—RNERZZE—LtF+=ZR=+
—BENEMERMENE
B AREHEERFREBIILE
ZA0XRAHILBREE -

) M EEEERR AR RA
SEERBRES - T EM D
18- BRA R

M= RHIRAKE
T RS-
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

32. Related Party Transactions (Continued) . BEIRS @)
(b) Related party transactions b) REFXS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following material

BRAR & B %5 R B AR &0 o P I
BEN AEEEAREAL

transactions with its related parties: HEITATEAR S
2017 2016
—B—-tF Z—ZZE—KRF
Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000
REME ARMTRT AR¥TET
Guangzhou Bawang International Meeting and catering service
expenses (notes i and v) 966 1,039
BN EBE SELESRRBEE (M iMy)
Guangzhou Chenming Purchase of materials (notes i and iv) 9,875 5124
& )N = A JR AT R RS SR (B 5EiAnv)
Guangzhou Qiancai Purchase of materials (notes i and v) 234 597
&M AE K JR KL B SR (B &R iR V)
Guangzhou Bawang Rental and management fee of
production plant and office
premises (notes i, iii and iv) 10,437 12,906
BN E AEREMBFRSFOHMES M
BB (M T, i Aiv)
Utility expenses paid and received on
behalf (notes i and v) 1,003 1,036
KARXNOKEEE B MK B
KEBUA (BT aEi Fv)
Guangzhou Xiaoxiao Sales of finished goods (notes i and v) - 36
& /N )N K iHE (B Eifnv)
Notes: Wi

0] The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
conducted on normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of
business and the basis of consideration for the transactions is the
prevailing market price.

(ii) The utility income was charged to Guangzhou Bawang in relation to the
utility expenses paid on behalf of Guangzhou Bawang.

i) EERA LR HIE—REE
BRREBEFEBREPHET X5
REEEARBRTME:

(ii) KEBRABEMSBE TR UK ALt
KEEBEROHEMNBTNRM-
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—ZF
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32. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Related party transactions (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

)

On 9 August 2013, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang
entered into two lease agreements, pursuant to which Bawang
Guangzhou leased from Guangzhou Bawang the production plant and
office premises at fixed monthly rental and management fee of
RMB1,120,000 and RMB92,800, respectively. The terms of the lease
under the agreements were 3 years from 9 August 2013. The lease
agreement was renewed on 9 August 2016 and the new terms of the
lease were 3 years from 9 August 2016. The renewed monthly rental
fee for production premises and office premises were approximately
RMB490,000 and RMB45,000 respectively. The renewed monthly
management fee for production premises and office premises were
approximately RMB310,000 and RMB39,000 respectively. The
renewed contract was terminated and a new contract was signed on 1
December 2017 and the new terms of the lease were 3 years from 1
December 2017. The new monthly rental and management fee for the
production premises, office premises and a staff dormitory are
approximately RMB719,900. Details of which were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 1 December 2017.

The related party transactions constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are provided in the “Report of the Directors” section to the annual
report.

The related party transactions constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, however, they are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

32. BE

B R 5 @)

(b) REF X5 (&)

M RE

(i)

(&)

RZZE—=FN\ANLB BITENM
HEMBIIUMOBE RS - &
- BITEMNMEMNGTRELE
BEMPEASH FABEHES R
BB AR/ ARK1,120,000F
ARM92800 HEHHEEMNL =
T-R"ENANBHEBEZ
iAHﬂEtﬁﬁ%zio%mﬁ
ESHRAA-_T—~FNALBRE
SFE-AESMMBEAENARE
2 B # A& A R 5 490,000 7T 45,000
T EEGFMPRAESAERE
7 1% 49310,0007T 1 A K % 39,000
T BEAHNERILE TR =2F—
t$+*ﬂf %ﬂ%Am-ﬁ%
A AR —tF+=-A—
Etﬁﬂ%:iciém%'%A
EYMERBEFENTNARRE

BEH/ARKETI000TT - i EH
RARZE—tE+-A—B%M
A e

BT X SWK ETRAF14AT
FIRENBERSRFTEBER

e FMBAEUAZTEZRNE R
EEFERS(EETERE] —EF
250

BE AT S5/FE EMBAIE14AE
FIATHBEXISAFERER
S HEEHREETLEMHRAE
TUAZEFH 2 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

32. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(c) The Controling Shareholders and Guangzhou Bawang
undertook to provide a loan facility to the Group in an
amount up to RMB140,000,000 for a period from 15
March 2013 to 31 December 2015 and were further
extended to 22 January 2018. The long-term loans are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable by 31 December
2017 or earlier as determined by the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had drawn
down HK$35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB29,323,000) under the facility. On 3 June 2016, all
the loans from the controlling shareholders were fully
repaid. As at 31 December 2017, there was no loan from
Controlling Shareholders (2016: nil). The effective interest
rate of the loans from Controlling Shareholders was 5%
per annum during the year ended 31 December 2016. As
at 31 December 2017, the available facilities are
approximately RMB140,000,000 (2016: RMB140,000,000)

which expired on 22 January 2018.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel of the

NR.BEIRS @)

(c) =R PR M BN & T &GS A A
SERE-—SERBAETME
% %8 = = A R 140,000,000
EMHE-_ZT—=F=A+
+—H E—F$ERE_FT—
NF—AZ_+=—_BH- - K EHE
REEERF REKBASEHE
RERZ—ZZE—ttF+=-A=
+—HxgZHEE - BHE-Z
—RNF+_A=Z=+—BL*F
ER AEBES—F28A
7 735,000,000 & B A R
#29,323,000) W fE K - L=
—RNENA=ZH TBEERR
EWMEREEE - BE T —
+tF+_A=+—H ZERKREK
REFREAEEAARES
T(ZE—RNFE: 8) K
BREERANBFEEIFENEA
5% - HE-_ZT—+F+_-_f=
+—H AHERAREEELY
A A R #140,000,000( = & —
NEE - AR #140,000,000) ¢
BER-_E—NF—A=-+=H
e &

(d FEEHEARHEMH
AEERFANIEEBAEN

Group during the year was as follows: B &5
2017 2016
—E—+tF T —RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARE&ET T
Short-term benefits %2 Hi 8 7 1,967 1,995
Post-employment benefits BB 2B T 203 219
Termination benefits B iR 1R A = 111
2,170 2,325
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+tHF+-A=+—HILFE

32. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel
(Continued)

The remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group was determined by the board of Directors, in
consultation with the remuneration committee, having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

33. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from
Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

2. BEIRS @
(d) TEEE A EEME)
AEETEEEALB Y R B

EFEHATHEZE R NFME
ARBETIZBHEEN -

1%

BB.RAEFTHELENEERE

TRHFMAEEXREREZDHNE
B BRASNIFEE-
RMETHELENBERRSAEN
AXBReREFEFERTRER
POBEAREEHRERENAG -

1January Financing Accrued 31 December
2017 cash flows interest 2017
R=ZB—tF mE R-ZZE—LHF
—A—H BeRhe EstRME +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT ARBTT AREFT
Liabilities afE
Bank borrowings RITER
(note 25) (Mf7%25) 5,610 (6,109) 495 -
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34. Litigations

(@)

The Directors considered that the contents of the relevant
article published by a media company on 14 July 2010
were defamatory to the Group and/or amount to malicious
falsehood. Therefore, the Group commenced legal
proceedings in the High Court of Hong Kong in October
2010 against the media company seeking, inter alia,
damages and an injunction to restrain the media company
from publishing such contents or similar contents. The trial
of the legal proceedings was completed on 29 August
2015. On 23 May 2016, the Group received the final
judgment handed down by the Court of First Instance of
the High Court of Hong Kong in respect of the legal
proceedings and the Group won the Legal Proceedings.
According to the final judgment the media company was
ordered by the High Court of Hong Kong to pay the
Group, general damages for libel in an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$3,005,000 (the “Damages”). The
High Court of Hong Kong also made a costs order nisi
that Next Magazine should pay to the Group 80% of the
legal costs of the Company and Bawang Guangzhou in
respect of the Legal Proceedings (the “Costs”). On 16
December 2016, the Court of First Instance made an
order by consent of the parties that in lieu of taxation of
the costs of the action, the Defendant do pay the Plaintiffs
the sum of HK$18,000,000 (inclusive of interest and the
cost of taxation) (equivalent of approximately
RMB16,101,000) in full and final settlement of the Costs
payable by the Defendant to the Plaintiffs in the action
pursuant to the above. The Damages was received by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016. On 25
January 2017, the Group received the Costs of
HK$18,000,000 (equivalent to RMB16,101,000).

The Damages and the Costs were recognised as other
income for the year ended 31 December 2016.

34.

SEERIREA

(@)

%%wu\ FEIEJE#%@\E?‘E/\\\:%E
—ZF+ A+ OHBERNERS
MR NEANRHBHAEED
Jh%&f&mkd¢@a EST AN
SEER_ZTE—ZEF+ARER
%mﬁﬁhm%%ﬁ AR B
&éﬁ“ Hep BRZEE
NAEEEE LY B2 HAiRZ
RNAREURNS o L EE2FA
ER-_ZE—RAFENA-+NB
EREFMN - R_ZE—RFEHA
—+=ZH AEEKRETEE
= E AT R AARE B 40 A0 H R 4
REAREBEBLARFARAEE - R
#ﬂﬁ R REEARES
EFXER TSI AEEESHY
&mwm%EM$%F&E
ERE] XN AEBERE
EFRDHBONMEREEBR - &
BEEERMEL T @M
BNERATERAERSZ A A
NElFBEEMN S MEEER
NERHFRE] H80% - K
—E—-RE+ZA+RB R
ﬂiﬁ»%ﬁ*%A L FR1E B
wEe REBEFALEHEFH W
4 A R & S 4% #18,000,000
T(EFBERABE)(HERA
R #161,101,0007T) * Itk =& JA %
HEERAREREZNUALEER
EmfER -BHE_T—XRF+
—AZ+—BLtEFEE KX&£HE
W) e — &%%Wﬁowé
EREHR AEERZ
+tF—A= +£EWJ‘m%
7 #18,000,000 7T (T & A R &
16,101,0007T) ©

FE—RESHEENERR
E-RF+_A=+—HFE
%ﬁﬁguu%ﬁ{ﬁ”&)\ °©
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34. Litigations (Continued)

(b)

In prior years, a lawsuit was filed by a former
subcontractor against Bawang (China) Beverage Co.,
Limited (“Bawang Beverage”) in People’s Court of
Songjiang District of Shanghai (the “Shanghai Court”) in
respect of a dispute in the material processing contract
between the former subcontractor and Bawang Beverage.
In 2013, Bawang Beverage received a civil order issued
by the Shanghai Court, which accepted the application by
the former subcontractor for property attachment prior to
lawsuit to freeze Bawang Beverage’s bank accounts in
the amount of approximately RMB873,000 or other assets
under the name of Bawang Beverage. In connection with
the lawsuit, one of Bawang Beverage’'s bank accounts
with an amount of approximately RMB309,000 was
frozen. No accrual was recorded by the Group as at 31
December 2013 based on the opinion provided by the
PRC legal counsel acting on behalf of Bawang Beverage.

On 20 June 2014, Shanghai No. 1 Intermediate People’s
Court gave its final ruling that Bawang Beverage was liable
to the former subcontractor for an amount of
approximately RMB643,000 and a legal cost of
approximately RMB19,000. Accordingly, provision for
litigation in amount of approximately RMB662,000 was
recognised as other expense in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and an amount of approximately RMB324,000
was settled during the year ended 31 December 2014. As
at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the remaining provision
of approximately RMB338,000 has not been settled.

34.

SEIRIREA(

(b)

B —RAIDHEEE LS
EEAE%EUtﬁ%ED%
ZEI B RET(PE) SRR
ERAR(HBEBERE] 2HB
REMIARMH W E LR
REFNR - R_T—=F"§
THEBRKET EEERHRSE
HIRE EBERTETAISD
HEMFRMERZBERE R
HETEIRHBITRFHOAR
#873,000TEk B LB B T A
EMEE -EWFRFP FL
KB EF —ERITERP W R
T8 ARB309,000T c R
—=F+-A=+—8B B
PEAREMBARRE L HH
RZEZEBERREENER &A%
B 18 R E U ET IR A o

EBE—HPARERR S
—MFERNAZTHEHRKRE
ROBIRBERBSHEEX
4 A R #643,0007T H B B
& M4 A R 19,0007 & 7 72
o m%-&@ﬁ%éﬁmA
R #662,0007T B # 1 R 1 4R
éﬁﬁﬁﬁmiﬁwm%¢ﬁ

HE#BH 4 AR 324,000
maﬁai—? mE+= A
“+T—HIEFERNEE -#HZE
—E-RNFNMZE—+F+=
A=+—BLEHFE HARK

338,0007T # Tl &k 5T 18 &1 K 45
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34. Litigations (Continued)

(©)

In prior years, a lawsuit was filed by Bawang Guangzhou
against a supplier in the District Court for the incomplete
construction and unsatisfactory performance of plant and
machineries provided by the supplier. On 2 February
2015, the District Court issued a verdict for the lawsuit
whereby (i) the purchase contracts for the plant and
machineries were terminated; (i) the supplier should pay
Bawang Guangzhou a sum of approximately
RMB22,518,000 representing purchase cost paid and
liguidated damages in addition to interest; and (i) the
plant and machineries concerned should be dismantled
and removed from the factory of Bawang Guangzhou.

In prior years, Bawang Guangzhou applied for an
injunction against the supplier in the District Court to
execute the court order handed down in 2014. On 14
October 2016, the Group received approximately
RMB169,000 from the supplier through the execution by
the court and the above amount has been recognised as
other income for the year ended 31 December 2016.
Upon further negotiation with the supplier, Bawang
Guangzhou is willing to settle the case outside the court.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no agreement
has been signed and no settlement has been received
from the supplier except the above amount.

In prior years, a lawsuit was filed by a total of 14 former
employees against Bawang Guangzhou in the District
Court in respect of termination compensation for a total
sum of approximately RMB2,891,000 representing related
severance payments, salaries and social insurance
expenses. Provision of litigation in the amount of
RMB500,000 was recognised as administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in prior years.

34.

SEIRIREA(

(©

RAFEFEE BIEMNGEERT
B 2 T 32 % B 12 # & TR 55 R0 1
AR 1 B N E A i 5 AR AR
FErHEE R-_T—0F=
H— CHb [ OK B 4E AR ()

RIEHEREOERES R (i)
V%%Eiﬁ%fﬁm%hﬁ
R -EBZAHARAMNEBLREFHD
A R #22,518,0007T : I (iii) #%¢
BTEINOKE TR ZEE M
MEER R -

RUAAEFEE FITEMNEH A
EhEEmMZEERHITZ
T —OFEH A ER H R R
—E-RNE+ATIAE AL
EBBAERATEFNEEMRE
FMESHITKIANDAREK
169,0007ci B Fil € FE R =
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EERAHEMUKA - HEtERE
HE—FHRY BIEMNBEE
%%%ﬂ%o@é:%—ti
+ A=+t BIEFEEEXK
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34. Litigations (Continued)

©)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the District
Court handed down the judgement for 12 out of 14
employees that the Group was liable to the former
employees for a sum of approximately RMB652,000. The
Group lodged an appeal against the decision to the
Intermediate Court for 9 out of 12 employees and the
other 3 employees appealed by themselves against the
decision to the Intermediate Court. For the remaining 2
employees, the court handed down the judgment for one
of them that the Group was liable to the former employee
for a sum of approximately RMB208,000 and the appeal
by the Group was rejected by the court. For another one,
the court handed down the judgment that the Group was
liable to the former employee for a sum of approximately
RMB45,000 and the Group lodged an appeal against the
decision. Accordingly, additional provision of
approximately RMB453,000 was recognised as
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2016 based on the option provided
by the PRC legal counsel acting on behalf of Bawang
Guangzhou.

On 8 March 2017, the appeal by the Group was rejected
by the court. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group has settled a sum of approximately
RMB928,000.

In prior years, a lawsuit was filed by a former employee
against Bawang Guangzhou in the District Court in
respect of termination compensation. On 8 October 2015,
the District Court gave its first ruling that Bawang
Guangzhou was liable to the former employee for a sum
of approximately RMB149,000 representing related
severance payments and salaries. Both the plaintiff and
Bawang Guangzhou lodged an appeal against the
decision. No hearing has yet been fixed for the appeal.
Accordingly, provision of litigation in the amount of
approximately RMB149,000 was recognised as
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in prior
years.

34.
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34. Litigations (Continued)

)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Intermediate Court handed down the judgment that the
Group was liable to the former employee for a sum of
approximately RMB167,000 representing related
severance payments and salaries and the Group settled
the amount during the year. Accordingly, additional
provision of approximately RMB18,000 was recognised as
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The whole amount has been
settled in 2017 and no additional provision has been made
as at 31 December 2017.

In prior years, a total of 3 lawsuits were filed by the same
supplier against Bawang Guangzhou in the District Court
and Guangzhou Arbitration Commission for a total sum of
approximately RMB1,810,000 and RMB859,000
respectively, representing outstanding retention fees and
construction fees. Accordingly, provision of litigation in the
amount of approximately RMB2,669,000 was recognised
as administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income based
on the opinion provided by the PRC legal counsel acting
on behalf of Bawang Guangzhou.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the District
Court and Guangzhou Arbitration Commission handed
down the judgment that the Group was liable to settle the
amount of approximately RMB1,810,000 and
RMB928,000 respectively with corresponding legal cost
and arbitration fee of approximately RMB23,000 and
RMB23,000 respectively. Therefore, the Group entered
into an agreement with the supplier that the Group will
settle the above amounts by 8 times installments for the
period from August 2016 to March 2017. The monthly
installment is RMB350,000 and the remaining balance will
be settled by the last time of installment. Additional
provision of RMB115,000 was recognised as
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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34. Litigations (Continued)

U

(Continued)

The Group has settled approximately RMB1,750,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2016 and the remaining
provision of approximately RMB1,034,000 has been
settled for the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, a lawsuit was
filed by the Group against a former joint venture in the
District Court for the outstanding receivable amount of
rental deposit and goods sold. The Group requested for
the following claim: (i) Repayment of the rental deposit of
approximately RMB57,000; (i) Repayment of the goods
sold of approximately RMB232,000; and (i) Repayment of
the overdue penalty of goods sold of approximately
RMB232,000. On 15 March 2017, the Group withdrew
the lawsuit after receiving the claim.

34.
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35. Principal Subsidiaries
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35.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December w—=E

2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/

Issued and
paid-up/

establishment and registered

L

Proportion ownership interest and

TERB QT

—RNFERZZE—+F+=A8
=t+—HERRBEXEWB QA

AlEE IR

Name operation capital voting power held by the Company Principal activities
o ERAR ADARENARR
L RIRBEHE HBREX BEENREELA TEEHR
2017 201 6
—E—t 5 T—XF
Direct Indirect Dlrect Indirect
ER MBE HE BE
% % % %
Forever Giants Limited BVI USD1 100 - 100 — Inactive
Forever Giants Limited HBELHES £ FNEER
Bawang International Group Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 — 100 Investment holding, advertising
Holding (HK) Limited agency and trading of household
and personal care products
BIBREEZR(ER) B B REZER BEREREHR
ARAT HERAREAZERER
Hong Kong Bawang Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 — 100 Advertising agency and trading of
International Trading household and personal care
Limited products
ERGIERES LA BA BT BERERZHRIEERB R
BABRER
Bawang Guangzhou The PRC USD67,500,000 - 100 - 100 Manufacturing and trading of
(note a) household and personal care
products
BIEM(Kst() HE % 7167,500,000 *”5&&”%&%&}%%%&
BAEEESR
Bawang Beverage The PRC HK$180,000,000 - 100 — 100 Inactive
(note a)
BIHH (HiE) HE 7 71,180,000,000 ERNEEH
Guangzhou Fanmei The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 - 100 e-Commerce and trading of
Electronic Business household and personal care
Company Limited* products
EMRBEFEBEERRE RE A R #1,000,000 EFRABREHERERTAREA
Ex}EF ZSgwal
Guangzhou Bawang Trading The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 — 100 Trading of household and personal

Company Limited*

EMNBETESBERAF T

A& #1,000,000

care products

EHRERRALEAAERER
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35. Principal Subsidiaries (Continued) 35.

Note:

(a) These entities are wholly foreign owned and limited liability companies
established in the PRC.

* For identification purposes only

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets
and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of both years or at any time during the years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
wholly-owned subsidiaries that are not material to the Group.
The principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as

FEMN B R T @)

Mi3E

@ HEERARTERINNEZAEED
BEREAT -

© R

FREJIHEARAEERRETER
EREEXEHREEMBBEZHEBE
RAE ARBEERRIREEMM
BRAlzHBE<ERBRILEM
PSR ©

REFRE-—FEHAN HELCH
f B8 X R B AT EAAIE AR BT o

REBHPRR RAIHEAEMEREE
MEFERNEZENBAA - ZF
MEARZETZEBMANT

follows:

Number of subsidiaries

MEARHE

Principal activities Principal place of business 2017 2016
FEXK FTEXEBHER —E—+F —E-RF
Investment holding BVI 2 2
BREER RERLHS
Investment holding Hong Kong 1 1
REZEK BB




Five Years Summary

LERBHRE

As at 31 December 2017 R=Z—+F+=-A=+—H

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tfE —ZZT—XF T—HFE ZT-NMF =—ZT—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AR®TET
(Restated)
(&&=
Results EF
Turnover e 264,215 264,229 232,181 294,649 478,380
Profit/(loss) before taxation BAIFE/ (BE) 19,231 41,094 (110,422) (116,457) (143,502)
Taxation I8 (4) 2,610 - - -
Profit/(loss) for the year KANBVEE AN
attributable to Z FRFE/
the owners of (&%)
the Company 19,227 43,704 (110,422) (116,457) (143,502)
Assets and liabilities EERARE
Property, plant and M- BER&E
equipment 132,403 137,237 155,284 225,340 294,256
Prepaid advertising fee ENESER 392 - - - 123
Biological assets EWEE = 457 426 175 170
Net current/(liabilities) nE/ (BB EE
assets SRE 37,843 13,305 (56,852) (26,364) (29,346)
Total assets less current BEBERLY
liabilities =R 170,246 150,542 98,432 199,151 265,203
Loan from controlling 2 RN
shareholders - — 54,946 44,069 —
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE — - 2,031 2,031 2,031
Net assets EEFE 170,246 150,542 41,455 153,051 263,172
Capital and reserves BERK#E
Share capital A% X 277,878 277,878 256,705 256,639 256,639
Reserves G (107,632) (127,336) (215,250) (103,588) 6,533
Total equity R 170,246 150,542 41,455 153,051 263,172
Earning/(loss) per share EF/(EE)
Basic and diluted (RMB) EARR#E
(AR#) 0.006 0.01 (0.038) (0.04) (0.05)
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